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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

CHAIR STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

Introduction 
 
BrandShield Systems Plc. ("BrandShield", "The Company") is one of the leading cyber security companies that provides brand 
oriented digital risk protection. The Company specialises in the monitoring, detection and removal of online threats such as 
phishing attempts, scams, impersonation, fraud, counterfeit products and trademark infringements. The business was 
established to revolutionise the way companies can protect their digital assets outside their security perimeter. Ever since 
launch, BrandShield has introduced ground-breaking innovative technologies for online brand protection powered by 
artificial intelligence (“AI”), machine learning and big data analysis to provide the most automated and relevant solutions 
for the 21st century.  
 
During the period, the Group delivered revenues of USD $4.13m, up 59% from USD $2.6m in 2020, driven by strong customer 
traction across a number of key industries. The business generated an expected loss of USD $5.28, (2020: USD $2.84m), 
which reflects the growth phase the Company is currently undergoing. 

Our focus has been entirely centred on the expansion of BrandShield’s underlying client base and the growth of the Annual 
Recurring Revenue (“ARR”) from those clients, a key performance indicator. This has been achieved primarily through the 
application of funds into the sales and marketing functions within the Company. We have also hired 20 additional 
employees, including sales directors in the US and UK, to accelerate client growth in those regions. The Company has also 
hired a sales director with the primary responsibility of developing partnership distribution channels to scale the client base.   

The ARR as at year end stood at $5.22m, a 59% increase from 2020 ($3.28m) and continues the very strong growth trend.  
That strong growth trend has continued into 2022 with the May ARR figure standing at $6.3m (unaudited), a 66.7% increase 
in the ARR relative to May 2021. I am pleased to report that the client numbers increased significantly in 2021 from 77 to 
130, fuelled by additional investment in the sales and marketing functions. Given a very strong Life Time Value to Customer 
Acquisition Cost (“LTV to CAC”) ratio, the Board has been clear in its desire for the Company to continue to focus on 
aggressive growth rather than profitability at this stage. BrandShield offers a superior product in a largely unserved market 
and, therefore, the priority must be on marketplace consolidation and achieving a leading position in the online brand 
protection competitive environment.   

In addition, BrandShield has minority interests in other assets, inherited as a result of the Reverse Takeover (“RTO”) 
transaction conducted with Two Shields Investments Plc in December 2020. These include holdings in WeShop Ltd (now 
renamed to Community Social Investment Ltd) and legacy mining assets, namely Kalahari Key Mineral Exploitation Company 
(Pty) Ltd, Leopard Lithium Pty Ltd and International Geosciences Limited (“IGS”). Each of these assets are considered non-
core and we remain focused on the orderly disposal of these legacy investments where value can be realised for our 
shareholders.   
 

BrandShield 

BrandShield is a fast-growing provider of cyber solutions, delivering an end-to-end brand oriented digital risk protection 
solution to its global customer base. Its software protects customers from the financial costs and reputational damage 
caused by an increasing number of online threats including phishing, social phishing, impersonation, and sale of counterfeit 
goods. Unlike traditional solutions, BrandShield’s Software as a Service (“SaaS”) delivered software operates outside of an 
organisation’s perimeter and therefore requires no integration. BrandShield’s highly developed software works by detecting 
potential threats, analysing them, prioritising them and then taking them down. BrandShield has developed a suite of 
proprietary AI-powered software that largely automates the analysis and prioritisation of online fraud cases. The technology 
uses big data and algorithms to find networks of fraudulent online activity and clusters of counterfeiters.  
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BrandShield’s software monitors millions of datapoints across many types of online platforms including websites, 
marketplaces, social media, mobile apps and Pay Per Click ads. The AI and machine learning nature of the software means 
that it is continually improving as it adds new datapoints and identifies new types of threats. In response to customer 
demand, BrandShield established its own in-house online hunting and enforcement team consisting mostly of qualified 
lawyers, with particular experience in IP law. The service is customised to the requirements of BrandShield’s customers and 
experiences high success rates. 

Strategy 

The Board’s strategic priority, as outlined in our previous annual report published in June 2021, was to drive the continued 
and rapid expansion of BrandShield’s offering globally. Furthermore, this was to be achieved through the acquisition of 
clients from a variety of sectors through innovative marketing activities. As highlighted above, the number of clients 
increased from 77 at end December 2020 to 130 at end December 2021, representing a significant period of growth. The 
associated ARR figure increased from $3.28m for 2020 to $5.22m, a 59% increase year on year. New clients have been gained 
from a variety of sectors including pharmaceutical, financial, crypto, e-commerce, fashion and celebrity brand 
merchandising. That growth trend has continued through the start of 2022 with the May 2022 ARR standing at $6.3m.  

The Company remained well positioned to react to the unique challenges posed by the Covid-19 pandemic and its aftermath. 
It had already invested in its online marketing processes which assisted in the strong growth of our client base. Sales cycles 
became shorter, particularly from small and medium sized clients, some of which signed annually recurring subscription 
contracts within a matter of days from the initial contact.   

The successes of 2021 have validated the existing strategy and the focus remains very much on expanding our client base 
and growing our associated ARR through 2022. The additional funding secured in 2022 will assist in this endeavour.  

In line with our stated strategy, the Board also remains focused on the orderly disposal of legacy assets held. There have 
been significant developments in some of these holdings which we believe brings the realisation of the value contained 
closer to fruition.  

Outlook 

The Group is looking forward to the continuing rapid expansion of BrandShield as a leading brand orientated digital risk 
protection company that is deployed globally. The increasing awareness of cyber related crimes and other threats to brands 
is leading to an acceptance that external threat prevention and eradication is an essential capability that every company 
must have, in the same way that protecting internal systems is viewed.   
 
In January 2022, the Company completed a £1,500,000 raise of gross investment funds to continue to execute the strategy 
of aggressively targeting client and ARR growth. In May, the Company raised an additional £1,000,000 from William Currie 
Investments and Sir Terry Leahy.  

This investment will allow BrandShield to expand its marketing and sales efforts and to continue to drive ARR forwards.  
The platform is built to scale and, therefore, a focus on the top line and customer conversion continues to be the over-riding 
priority for 2022.   

 

Azriel Moscovici - Chairman 
30 June 2022 
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 

 
CEO REVIEW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

 

Introduction 
 
We are pleased to report a strong performance across FY 2021 with BrandShield delivering excellent financial and 
operational progress. Central to our success is the progress the Company has made in delivering ARR to $5.22m, a 59% 
increase from 2020 ($3.28m), continuing the very strong growth trend. That strong growth trend has continued into 2022 
with the May ARR figure standing at $6.3m, a 66.7% increase in the ARR relative to May 2021.   
 
This was underpinned by the conversion of clients across a number of sectors and the ongoing investment in, and expansion 
of, the Company's marketing and sales functions. This positive trend has continued throughout FY2021 with the Company 
now servicing over 140 clients, adding 53 across 2021, and over 10 more by May 2022. 
 
Given a very strong Life Time Value to Customer Acquisition Cost (“LTV to CAC”) ratio, we have been clear for BrandShield 
to continue to focus on aggressive growth rather than profitability at this stage. Management believe BrandShield offers a 
superior product in a largely unserved market and, therefore, the priority must be on marketplace consolidation and 
achieving a leading position in the digital risk protection competitive environment. 
 
Revenues for FY2021 increased 59% to $4.13m, compared to FY2020 $2.6m, with the Group reporting a loss for the period 
of $5.28m (FY2020: loss of $2.84m), which was in-line with management's expectations.  
 
The Company added 53 new customers in 2021, built across a growing list of sectors and market-leading brands. These have 
included new or extended contracts with companies operating in the financial services, pharmaceutical, fashion, crypto, 
entertainment, fashion, sports, and cosmetics sectors.  
 
The Group has delivered significant customer traction during the period, and whist confidentially agreements prevent 
BrandShield disclosing all our successes, we have been able to disclose the following: 
 

• Delivered a 98% success rate in removing online scams involving its client Bang & Olufsen, proving the value of real 
time online threat hunting to a company whose primary asset is its brand reputation 

• Partnership with Coinmama, a leading cryptocurrency exchange, achieving the identification and takedown of 30 
phishing and over 100 fraudulent websites seeking to impersonate Coinmama 

• The extension of this ongoing contract expands BrandShield’s protective coverage of the financial sector further, 
deepening its presence in the cryptocurrency verticals with eToro remaining a flagship client 

• Customer traction within the pharmaceutical industry, building on existing relationships with the Pharmaceutical 
Security Institute (“PSI”) and Bristol Myers Squibb  

• Signed an agreement with a merchandising company of a celebrity franchise to mitigate online abuse of its brand 
and sales of counterfeit merchandise  

• Secured a mandate with a customer in the personal care industry and one of a fast-growing number of small and 
medium enterprises ("SMEs") who are identifying the need to source online brand protection solutions as they seek 
to grow through online channels such as TikTok and Instagram 

 
The value that BrandShield can add to our clients was further highlighted through the results of its year-long disruption 
programme in support of the PSI, which was set up in 2002 by the Security Directors from 14 major pharmaceutical 
companies.  

Over the year, BrandShield took down over 850 rogue pharmacies across websites and social media platforms, including 
4,000 social media posts and more than 14,000 fraudulent marketplace listings. The listings removed include medicines 
relating to cancer, diabetes, asthma, Covid-19 and Alzheimer’s. The international protection afforded to clients by 
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BrandShield was reflected in the fact that most fraudulent marketplace listings originated in regions such as Indonesia, India, 
the Philippines, and Malaysia.  

BrandShield’s ability to execute takedowns globally and in an automated way is a huge force multiplier to brands seeking to 
protect their own reputations and to protect individuals from the sometimes-life-threatening harm that can be inflicted on 
them by these fraudulent networks.     

Our unique market position was further demonstrated through the launch of VaxFax, the first crowd-sourced reporting site 
that allows anyone to submit details of fake websites, social postings and marketplace listings associated with Covid-19 
vaccine scams. This followed BrandShield uncovering more than 8,000 fraudulent websites associated with vaccine fraud.  
This crowd-sourcing initiative has proved the value of such an approach going forwards and opens up further opportunities 
for expansion of BrandShield’s offering in the Business-to-Consumer space.  
 
Market dynamics 

MarketsandMarkets estimated that the global cyber threat intelligence market was worth $11.6 billion in 2021 and is 
expected to grow to $15.8 billion by 2026, at a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of 6.5%.  
 
Therefore, the opportunity for BrandShield is significant, and growth in our key target markets is showing no signs of abating 
and is apparent across myriad sectors - as demonstrated by the diverse nature of our new business wins in 2021.  
 
Our unique proposition 
 
We believe that our technology is well placed to lead this transition as enterprises increase their online protection and move 
from focusing on internal cybersecurity to requiring solutions for external threats, providing comprehensive brand oriented 
digital risk protection solutions. BrandShield's market-leading solutions are underpinned by: 
 

• A mature product, creating higher barriers to entry; 

• Ongoing investment in R&D to ensure market leadership is maintained; 

• AI/ML powered technology; 

• Strong threat network detection capabilities; 

• Unique image recognition and Optical Character Recognition (“OCR”) - focusing on detection of emerging threats 
on social media and e-commerce marketplaces; and 

• Big data investigation tools with multi-brand and platform capabilities. 
 
In addition, BrandShield adopts a multi-layered approach to the detection and mitigation of online threats, which includes 
Data Detection, Automated Analysis and Prioritisation, Easy-to-Use Interface and Highly Automated Takedown Actions. 
 
Strategy 
 
The further expansion of BrandShield's global customer footprint remains a key growth priority as the Company seeks to 
increase ARR from clients in a variety of sectors. This is being primarily achieved through the expansion of the marketing 
and sales activities. 
 
Central to the Company's growth are the following strategic priorities: 
 

• Continue to invest in and grow the sales and marketing teams; 

• Specific expansion of the sales teams in the US and UK; 

• Establishing a broader marketing footprint; 

• Expansion of advertising, sales promotion and digital marketing campaigns; and 

• Ongoing Business-to-Business public relations and brand building activities. 
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Product development 
 
Further capability enhancements were added to the BrandShield platform throughout 2021 and in the first half of the current 
year.   
 
BrandShield deployed cutting-edge Image Recognition and Optical Character Recognition ("OCR") on its online brand 
protection platform in 2021, which has been well received with clients. Our image recognition technology detects images 
which are similar or identical to those copyrighted by the Company's customers. Our technology is able to then link these 
images to global networks of fraudulent activity across hundreds of e-commerce marketplaces. Traditionally, image 
infringement identification involves the manual review of thousands of individual listings across platforms, but BrandShield's 
technology streamlines this process exponentially.  
 
These capabilities have been extended to cover social media platforms ensuring that BrandShield's product offering remains 
at the forefront of the sector. This technology allows the text within social media posts or images to be interrogated. This 
adds a further layer of abuse identification for use against fraudsters that attempt to hide brand names and product 
descriptions within an image of posts or profile photos, rather than in separate, purely textual fields. 
 
Finally, BrandShield 3.0 alpha version was launched in January 2022, providing an enhanced layer of protection against 
external digital threats such as web fraud, phishing, social media scams, impersonations and online-counterfeiting. 
 
BrandShield 3.0 is a completely new version of the BrandShield platform which was developed in accordance with the latest 
market requirements and to meet the most recent digital risk protection and brand protection challenges. The SaaS 
technology includes a completely new and robust infrastructure, and its innovative user interface is both intuitive and 
enables more ways to detect threat networks and carry out immediate takedowns whilst covering more threats in less time. 
 
Key hires 
 
The US accounts for the majority of the Company's client base, and in July 2021, the Group appointed Harel Kodesh as a 
Non-executive Director. Harel, who is based in Silicon Valley, brings a wealth of experience to BrandShield, particularly in 
terms of driving the rapid growth of technology companies. In addition, during the first half of the year, the Company has 
also established physical sales presences in the UK and US, both of which are converting clients in these core territories for 
the Group. 
 
Outlook 
 
The Company delivered a strong performance across 2021, and, pleasingly, that momentum has continued into 2022, with 
BrandShield having already secured a number of new mandates with companies across a wide array of sectors. Revenue 
growth and new business development continues to be a focused strategy for management alongside expanding the Group 
market share and profile. 
 
The increasing awareness of cyber related crimes and other threats to brands is driving further demand for digital risk 
protection solutions, such as those BrandShield offers. The Board is confident in the Group's future prospects and to its 
ongoing rapid expansion. 
 
The Company remains confident in trading in line with the expectations for the full year 2022 and in the growth prospects 
in the medium-term. 
 
Yoav Keren 
 
Chief Executive Officer 

BrandShield Limited 
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

 
Azriel Moscovici – Non-Executive Chairman – appointed 1 December 2020 

Azriel (“Uzi”) Moscovici is an experienced manager and technologist with considerable knowledge in information, 
communications and cyber technology.  Uzi is currently the Chief Executive of Waveguard, an intelligence and offensive 
cyber company based in Tel Aviv. Prior to that he was Vice President of the Missile Systems division of Israeli Aviation 
Industries.  He is also a Major General (reserves) and the former head of the Israeli Defence Force’s Cyber Defence and IT 
directorate, where he was responsible for IT architecture, communications, software, computing centres, cryptography, 
spectrum and cyber defence.  Before that Uzi was a commander of front line units up to a division level.  Uzi qualified as 
an aerodynamics engineer and holds an MSc. in Strategy and an MBA.  He is chair of the Remuneration Committee and a 
member of the Audit Committee. 

 
Yoav Keren – Chief Executive Officer – appointed 1 December 2020 
 
Yoav is one of the founders of BrandShield Systems Plc.  He has 25 years of experience in financial management, marketing 
and business development. He is currently a member of the anti-counterfeiting committee at INTA and was formerly a 
Council Member at ICANN. Yoav was Senior Advisor to a minister in the Israeli government and was the head of the 
Technology branch of the Israeli military’s Information Security Department. He holds an MBA from the Kellogg & Recanati 
business school (Northwestern University & Tel-Aviv University), and a B.A. in Economics and Physics from the Tel-Aviv 
University. 
 

Yuval Zantkeren – Co- CEO and Chief Technical Officer – appointed 1 December 2020 
 
Yuval is one of the founders of BrandShield Systems Plc and he is an internet information systems expert. He has 23 years 
of experience in managing software development and web development, specialising in domain name systems and IDN 
(Internationalised Domain Name) systems.  Yuval was formerly a member of the Government Advisory Committee at ICANN 
for Israel.  Yuval holds an L.L.B and is a qualified lawyer. He earned a Business Administration degree Cum Laude specialising 
in Information Technology and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from IDC Herzliya. 
 

Ravit Freedman – Chief Financial Officer – appointed 1 December 2020 
 
Ravit has over 20 years of experience acting as CFO, Financial Controller, VP Finance and Auditor in a range of sectors 
including internationally focused technology companies. She is a Certified Public Accountant and holds a Masters of Law 
(LLM) from Bar-Ilan University. She started her career as an auditor with Arthur Andersen before acting as CFO for a number 
of early stage companies. From 2002 to 2009 she was Financial Controller of RDT Group. More recently she was CFO of The 
Port of Tel Aviv and VP Finance for KiloLambda Technologies Limited which was acquired by Elbit Systems Ltd. 
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

 

Harel Kodesh – Non-Executive Director – appointed 27 July 2021 
 

Harel, who is based in Silicon Valley, brings a wealth of experience to BrandShield, particularly in terms of driving the rapid 
growth and expansion of technology companies.  Harel served as Operating Partner at Silver Lake Partners, a global leader 
in technology investments with $74 Billion in combined assets under management and committed capital. Prior to Silver 
Lake, Mr. Kodesh served as Vice President at Predix and Chief Technology Officer at GE Digital. He was responsible for driving 
the technical strategy behind Predix, GE's cloud platform for the Industrial Internet, and the applications developed 
by GE for the industrial sector. Before joining GE, Mr. Kodesh co-founded and served as CEO at Nurego, a spinoff of EMC 
Corp. At EMC, he acted as Executive VP for Cloud Business Systems and as CEO of Mozy, its wholly owned subsidiary 
dedicated to Backup as a Service.  He is currently a partner at BiologyWorks, which develops at-home molecular tests for 
viral infections. Mr Kodesh holds a BS in computer engineering and a MS in electrical engineering from the Technion, Israel 
Institute of Technology. He has served on boards for Mobilitec, DreamBox Learning, BSquare and Modern Systems. Mr 
Kodesh also sits on the Board of Councillors for USC's Viterbi School of Engineering. Mr. Kodesh was the 2017 recipient of 
the USC Viterbi School's Daniel J. Epstein Award for Engineering Management. 
 

John Taylor – Non-Executive Director  

Over the last 4 years he has worked with a group assisting small cap technology stocks with their development.  He was a 

NED of KIN Group Plc which successfully conducted the RTO of Bidstack Limited on to AIM.  He is Executive Director of TECC 

Capital Plc and also Chairman of Asimilar Group Plc and Quetzal Capital Plc and was formerly a Director of Sabien Technology 

Group Plc and Pathfinder Minerals Plc.  He also joined the Board of IamFire Plc in September 2021.  Before this he spent 

18 months working in private equity backed portfolio companies, driving operational turnaround initiatives and 

implementing costing systems.  He also spent over 20 years in the Army Air Corps, leaving in 2015 in the rank of Lieutenant 

Colonel and having commanded an Apache Attack Helicopter Squadron on operations.  He is the Chair of the Audit 

Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee. 
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 
The Directors present their Strategic Report and Corporate Governance Report of BrandShield Systems plc (“the Group” or 
“BRSD”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. 
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 
 
The principal activity of the Group is the development of a brand protection and online threat hunting solution to prevent, 
detect and remove online threats, through its research and development centre in Israel. 
 
REVIEW OF BUSINESS 
 
A review of the business is detailed in the Chairman’s Statement and the CEO review on pages 2 to 7. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
The loss for this year before and after taxation was $6.3m (2020: loss of $3.296m). 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of December 2021 was $1.194m (2020 was $3.198m, 2019: $360k). 
 
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (“KPIs”) 
 

The main KPI’s for the Group are set out below. These allow the Group to monitor costs and plan future investment 
decisions: 

 2021  2020  2019 

 $  $  $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,194,275  3,198,525   360,641  

Revenue 4,127,247  2,589,370   1,771,423  

Annual recurring revenue (ARR) 5,218,000  3,278,271  1,914,781 

 
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

BrandShield is a relatively early stage company with limited trading history. Consequently, even with significant planning 
and preparation by the Group’s management, the Enlarged Group could fail to prove its value proposition in the market, 
which would make profitable growth difficult. There is also the potential for cost over-runs resulting from recognised cost 
items which may prove to be underappreciated, or from additional unanticipated costs.  

The Enlarged Group is reliant on the technical robustness of BrandShield’s software platform. 

The success of the Enlarged Group is largely dependent on its technical capabilities and it relies to a significant degree on 
the efficient and uninterrupted operation of its computer and communications systems and those of its third-party suppliers, 
including the internet.  

Customer access to the Enlarged Group’s platforms and services, the ease with which a customer is able to navigate through 
the platform and the broad range of services which are available to customers are factors which affect the attractiveness of 
the Enlarged Group’s services.  

 



 

 

 

Page 10 
 

BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

Due to its dependency upon technology, and its cloud servers, the Enlarged Group is exposed to a risk in the event that such 
technology or the Enlarged Group’s systems experience any form of damage, interruption or failure. A malfunctioning of the 
Enlarged Group’s technology and systems, or those of key third-party suppliers, could result in a lack of confidence in the 
Enlarged Group’s services, with a consequential adverse effect on the Enlarged Group’s business, revenue, financial 
condition, profitability, prospects and results of operations. The Enlarged Group’s systems are vulnerable to damage or 
interruption from events including, but not limited to natural disasters, telecommunication failures, power loss, software 
failures, computer hacking activities, acts of sabotage and acts of war or terrorism. It should be noted that this risk is similar 
to any other company that provides software as a service solution, and is not specific to BrandShield. 

BrandShield’s business involves providing customers with software services. As a result of its complexity, BrandShield’s 
platform or software may contain undetected errors or failures when initially introduced to the market or when upgraded 
versions are released. Although BrandShield thoroughly tests all of its software prior to release, errors may be found 
subsequent to release. If the software contains undetected defects when first introduced or when upgraded or enhanced, 
the Enlarged Group may fail to meet its customers’ performance requirements or otherwise satisfy contract specifications. 
As a result, it may lose customers and/ or become liable to its customers for damages and this may, amongst other things, 
damage the Enlarged Group’s reputation and financial condition. The Enlarged Group endeavours to negotiate limitations 
on its liability in its customer contracts, however, defects in the software developed and sold by the Enlarged Group could 
result in the loss of a customer, a reduction in business from any particular customer, negative publicity, reduced prospects 
and/or a distraction to its management team. A successful claim by a customer to recover such losses could have a material 
adverse effect on the Group’s reputation, business, prospects, results of operation and financial condition.  

Management and reliance on key personnel  

The successful operation of the Enlarged Group will depend significantly upon the performance and expertise of its current 
and future management and employees. The loss of the services of certain of these members of the Enlarged Group’s key 
management or employees, particularly Yoav Keren or Yuval Zantkeren, or the inability to identify, attract and retain a 
sufficient number of suitably skilled and qualified employees may have a material adverse effect on the Enlarged Group. 
Expansion of the Enlarged Group may require considerable management time which may in turn inhibit management’s 
ability to conduct the day to day business of the Enlarged Group.  

The service agreements for Yoav Keren and Yuval Zantkeren with respect to their roles at BrandShield are governed by the 
laws of Israel and contain provisions that are customary in Israel. These differ to the customary terms in England and Wales 
and permit the employees to shorten their notice period on termination in customary circumstances when they are deemed 
to be subject to a “Good Reason”. Whilst this includes actions by the employer which are broadly equivalent to unfair 
dismissal or similar, they also include actions by the employee including change of location. 

As BrandShield expands more management and key employees are likely to be retained under Israeli practices which may 
differ to customary terms in the United Kingdom. 
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 
 
 
Financial Risk Management 
 
The Group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effect of changes in foreign currency exchange 
rates, funding risk, credit risk, market risk/ commodity volatility, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group has a risk 
management programme in place that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The 
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to manage foreign currency risk and, as such, no hedge accounting is 
applied. Details of the Group’s financial risk management policies are set out in note 2 to the Financial Statements. 
 
 
Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern assumption. Under the going concern assumption, 
an entity is ordinarily viewed as continuing in business for the foreseeable future with neither the intention nor the necessity 
of liquidation, ceasing trading or seeking protection from creditors pursuant to laws or regulations. 
  
In January 2022 the Company completed a £1,500,000 raise of gross investment funds to continue to execute the strategy 
of aggressively targeting client and ARR growth. This was followed by an additional £1,000,000; both were subscribed for by 
existing and new investors. 
  
Given the pace of growth within the Company and the Board’s stated strategy of continuing to aggressively target client 
conversion and ARR growth, it is likely that the Company will engage in further fundraising activity within the next 12 months.  
This will be tailored to opportunities to expand as they present themselves. The Board is confident that access to such 
funding will be available from recent strategic investors should that need arise. As such, the Directors are confident that this 
additional funding will continue and consider that the Group will have access to adequate resources to meet operational 
requirements for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. On this basis, the Directors 
have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the Financial Statements, that there is a reasonable expectation that 
the Group has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, 
the Directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements. 
 
COVID-19 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic is still providing extraordinary challenges around the world which has resulted in protracted 
volatility in international markets and a global recession as a consequence of disruptions to travel, retail segments, tourism, 
and manufacturing supply chains, many of which continue to impact the wider global economy.  Whilst the Group has 
returned to more normal working practices, some mitigation measures remain in place including limited working from home 
where it does not impact operations.  The Company’s leadership is actively engaged in the international conference circuit 
again which is leading to increased business opportunities and contracts.   

 
Non-Core Assets 

WeShop Ltd  

WeShop is an innovative, digital social network platform focused on the rapidly growing and highly valuable social e-
commerce sector forecast to become a US$350 billion market over the mid-term. WeShop's digital platform is designed to 
enhance online shopping experiences by combining social media's assets of reviews, likes and shares with an engaging retail 
e-commerce offering, specifically tailored to the individual user. Users benefit from gaining access to thousands of brands 
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and millions of products on one platform plus a two-way sharing of ideas with friends to participate in a rewards system; 
brands/retailers benefit from increased sales and awareness.  

BrandShield holds 508,508 shares in WeShop Limited. This represents around 10.5% of the currently issued share capital in 
WeShop Limited. Should a £9m convertible loan note in WeShop Limited convert then the Company’s holding would reduce 
to around 5.3%. WeShop Holdings Limited is currently trading on the JP Jenkins matched bargain trading platform with most 
recent trades being at £3.50 per share. Taking this share price then the Net Asset Value of WeShop Limited would be £116m 
and the potential NAV per share would be £24.05 for currently issued shares or £12.09 for shares issued following conversion 
of the CLNs. The value of BrandShield’s holding could be derived at £12.2m or £6.2m respectively in those scenarios, however 
the Board does not believe that it is prudent to attach such a valuation at this stage given the relatively small trading volume 
of WeShop Holdings on JP Jenkins, the fact that the WeShop main marketing effort has not been fully launched yet and the 
fact that there are likely to be some taxation liabilities and administrative costs associated with WeShop Limited which will 
be deducted from any shares issued to underlying shareholders in specie. The lock in period to May 2023 would also require 
a discount to be applied to any derived valuation. As such the Board has continued to hold the value of the investment in 
WeShop Limited at cost, that being $4,112,107. 
 
BrandShield also holds minority interests in some legacy mining focused assets. These were impaired in the previous year’s 
accounts to an aggregate value of £250,000. Despite positive developments in all of these investments the Board feels it 
prudent to retain this valuation. Further details of these investments can be found in Note 15 to these accounts.  
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 

 
STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Introduction: 

The Board of directors of the Group recognises the importance of sound corporate governance and applies The Quoted 
Company Alliance Corporate Governance Code (2018) (the ‘QCA Code’), which it believes is the most appropriate recognised 
governance code for a Group with shares admitted to trading on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange. It is believed 
that the QCA Code provides the Group with the framework to help ensure that a strong level of governance is maintained, 
enabling the Group to embed the governance culture that exists within the organisation as part of building a successful and 
sustainable business for all its stakeholders. 

The QCA Code has ten principles of corporate governance that the Group has committed to apply within the foundations of 
the business. These principles are: 

1. Establish a strategy and business model which promote long-term value for shareholders; 
2. Seek to understand and meet shareholder needs and expectations; 
3. Take into account wider stakeholder and social responsibilities and their implications for long term success; 
4. Embed effective risk management, considering both opportunities and threats, throughout the organisation; 
5. Maintain the board as a well-functioning balanced team led by the Chair; 
6. Ensure that between them the directors have the necessary up to date experience, skills and capabilities; 
7. Evaluate board performance based on clear and relevant objectives, seeking continuous improvement; 
8. Promote a corporate culture that is based on ethical values and behaviours; 
9. Maintain governance structures and processes that are fit for purpose and support good decision-making by the 

Board; and 
10. Communicate how the Group is governed and is performing by maintaining a dialogue with shareholders and other 

relevant stakeholders. 

There follows a short explanation of how the Group will apply each of the principles: 

Principle One 

Business Model and Strategy 

The Board has concluded that the highest medium and long term value can be delivered through the adoption of a single 
strategy. The Group’s principal activity is to operate BrandShield Limited and execute a strategy to increase its market share 
and penetration through rigorous marketing and the continued pursuit to become best in class in the brand protection 
sphere. In addition to the main operating entity, Brandshield Systems PLC has a minority interest in WeShop Limited which 
is a cutting-edge digital social network platform focused on the fast-growing and highly valuable e-commerce sector. The 
Group is encouraged by the recent progress following the purchase of the name, assets and business of WeShop Limited but 
WeShop Holdings Limited and will continue to monitor this keenly. A successful launch and the completion of the 
aspirational listing on a US exchange may see a significant re-rating of the valuation of our holding in WeShop Limited. The 
Group will continue to seek opportunities to divest the remaining legacy commodities- based investments which could 
include partnering with operators that the Board feels can extract more optimal value from existing holdings. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

Principle Two 

Understanding Shareholder Needs and Expectations 

The Board is committed to maintaining good communication and having constructive dialogue with its shareholders. 
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Group’s Annual General Meeting. Investors also have access to current 
information on the Group though its website, [www.brandshield.com], and via Yoav Keren, Chief Executive Officer, and John 
Taylor, Non-Executive Director who are responsible for shareholder liaison and are available to answer investor relations 
enquiries. Shareholders can email the Group at info@brandhshield.com or via a submission on the Group website.  

The Group’s annual report, Notice of Annual General Meetings (AGM) are sent to all shareholders and can be downloaded 
from our website. Copies of the interim report and other investor presentations are also available on the Group’s website. 

Shareholders are kept up to date via regulatory news flow (“RNS”) on matters of a material substance and regulatory nature. 
Periodic updates are provided to the market and any deviations to these updates are announced via RNS. 

At the AGM, separate resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue. For each proposed resolution, proxy forms are 
issued which provide voting shareholders with an opportunity to vote in advance of the AGM if they are unable to vote in 
person. Our registrars, count the proxy votes which are properly recorded and the results of the AGM are announced 
through an RNS. 

The Board is keen to ensure that the voting decisions of shareholders are reviewed and monitored and that approvals sought 
at the Group’s AGM are as much as possible within the recommended guidelines of the QCA Code. 

Non-deal roadshows will be arranged throughout the year to meet with existing shareholders and potential new 
stakeholders to maintain, as much as possible, transparency and dialogue with the market. Additionally, Investor 
presentations can be found on the Group’s website. 

 

Principle Three 

Considering wider stakeholder and social responsibilities 

The Board recognises that the long- term success of the Group is reliant upon open communication with its internal and 
external stakeholders: investee companies, shareholders, contractors, suppliers, regulators and other stakeholders. The 
Group has close ongoing relationships with a broad range of its stakeholders and provides them via regular contact with the 
opportunity to raise issues and provide feedback to the Group. The Board regularly reviews and assesses its key resources 
and relationships and has established processes and systems to ensure that there is close oversight and contact with its 
minority investee companies and key stakeholders. 

 

mailto:info@brandhshield.com
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STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

Principle Four 

Risk Management 

The Board is responsible for ensuring that procedures are in place and being implemented effectively to identify, evaluate 
and manage the significant risks faced by the Group, noting that the Group is primarily an operating company with some 
remaining minority investments in portfolio companies. A risk assessment matrix has been established by the Group and is 
updated at regular intervals. The following principal risks, and controls to mitigate them, have been identified: 

  

Risk Impact Probability Risk Level Mitigating 
Actions & 
Controls  

Risk 
Owner 

Accept Comments 

Failure of 
Business & 
Operations 
 

No guarantee the 
Group will 
continue to 
generate revenue 
or make a profit  

 

High Low Medium Experience of 
the Board and 
senior 
management; 
Robust process 
and 
procedures; 
Regular 
financial 
reporting to 
and review by 
the Board  

CEO Yes Considered 
low risk given 
the expected 
growth and 
the ability to 
control 
discretionary 
spend 
(marketing) if 
necessary  

 

Increased 
competition  

The business 
operates in a 
competitive 
market  

Medium Medium Medium Strong 
relationships 
with 
customers; 
Experience of 
senior 
management  

CEO Yes Considered 
medium risk 
due to the 
barriers of 
entry  

 

Inability to hire 
appropriate 
people 
The growth of the 
Business will 
require it to hire 
highly qualified 
people (IT, 
enforcement)  

High Medium Medium Attractive 
sector; 
Ability to 
motivate with 
share options  

 

CEO Yes Considered 
medium risk 
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STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - continued 
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Misappropriation 
of funds  

Large cash 
balances make it 
high impact  

 

High Low Medium Two signatures 
required for 
amounts over 
$20,000; 

All expenses and 
invoices authorised 
by a Board 
member;  

Expenditure 
reviewed against 
detailed budgets;  

Detailed monthly 
accounts;  

Local audit to 
international 
standards  

CFO Yes  

Loss of key 
management 
personnel  

High Medium Low Key management 
have significant 
equity;  

Share options 
awarded; 

Exciting business 
opportunities  

CEO Yes  

Loss of liquidity  

 

High Low Low Up-to-date cash 
forecasts;  

Recent fundraising; 
Regular meetings 
with brokers  

CEO Yes  

Loss of Group 
data – financial & 
operational  

 

Medium Low Low Regular back-ups 
of data made 
online and locally;  

Use cloud storage 
for all key 
documents to 
increase retention  

All Yes  
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STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

Principle Five 

A Well- Functioning Board of Directors 

The Board comprises the Non-Executive Chairman Azriel Moscovici, the Chief Executive Officer Yoav Keren, the Chief 
Technical Officer, Yuval Zantkeren, Chief Financial Officer, Ravit Freedman and two Non-Executive Directors, John Taylor and 
Harel Kodesh. Biographical details of the current Directors are set out on pages 8 and 9. Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors are subject to re-election in accordance with both the requirements of the UK Companies Act 2016 and the Group’s 
articles of association (“Articles”). The Group’s Articles state that Directors are subject to re-election at intervals of no more 
than three years . The letters of appointment for all Directors stipulate the time commitment that each Director is expected 
to provide to the Group. The Board Chairman serves as chair of every meeting of the Board of Directors. 

The Board has not met in person this year due to Covid restrictions but the CEO has met with all Directors independently.  
Monthly Board calls have been held and various ad hoc meetings have also taken place on specific issues. It has established 
an Audit Committee, the members of which are included in Principle Six below. The Board has agreed that Director 
appointments are made by the Board as a whole, and so has not created a Nominations Committee. A Remuneration 
Committee has been established and is composed of Messrs Kodesh (Chair), Moscovici and Taylor. The Committee seeks to 
follow the guiding principles laid out by the Quoted Company Alliance (QCA). No Board member may influence decisions 
relating to their own specific remuneration. 

Messrs Moscovici, Kodesh and Taylor are considered to be Independent Directors and as such the Group is in compliance 
with the requirement to have a minimum of two independent non-executive directors on its Board. 

The Board notes that the expectation of the QCA Code is that the Chairman will not have an executive capacity and that the 
role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) are not held by the same person. 

The Board shall review further appointments. 

 Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings 

The Group reports annually in the Directors’ Report on the number of Board and committee meetings held during the year 
and the attendance record of individual Directors. To date in the current financial year the Directors have a 100% record of 
attendance at such meetings. Directors meet formally and informally by video conferencing and by telephone.  More 
information is shown on page 25. 

 Principle Six 

Appropriate Skills and Experience of the Directors 

The Board currently consists of six Directors and, in addition, the Group has employed the outsourced services of 
Shakespeare Martineau LLP to act as the Company Secretary. The Group believes that the current balance of skills in the 
Board as a whole, reflects a very broad range of commercial and professional skills across geographies and industries and 
two of the Directors have experience in public markets. Information about the directors can be found on page 8 and 9. 
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 STRATEGIC REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - continued 
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

 

The Board is kept abreast with developments of governance and AIM regulations. The Group’s lawyers provide updates on 
governance issues, the Group’s NOMAD provides annual board AIM Rules refresher training as well as the initial training as 
part of a new director’s onboarding. 

The directors have access to the Group’s NOMAD, company secretary, lawyers and auditors as and when required and are 
able to obtain advice from other external bodies when necessary. 

Principle Seven 

Evaluation of Board Performance 

Internal evaluation of the Board, the Committees and individual Directors is undertaken on an annual basis in the form of 
peer appraisal and discussions to determine the effectiveness and performance against targets and objectives, as well as 
the Directors’ continued independence. As a part of the appraisal the appropriateness and opportunity for continuing 
professional development whether formal or informal is discussed and assessed. 

Principle Eight 

Corporate Culture 

The Board recognises that their decisions regarding strategy and risk will impact the corporate culture of the Group as a 
whole which in turn will impact the Group’s performance. The Directors are very aware that the tone and culture set by the 
Board will greatly impact all aspects of the Group as a whole and the way that consultants or other representatives behave. 
The corporate governance arrangements that the Board has adopted are designed to instil a firm ethical code to be followed 
by Directors, employees, consultants and representatives alike throughout the entire organisation. The Group strives to 
achieve and maintain an open and respectful dialogue with employees, representatives, regulators, suppliers and other 
stakeholders. Therefore, the importance of sound ethical values and behaviours is crucial to the ability of the Group to 
successfully achieve its corporate objectives. The Board places great import on this aspect of corporate life and seeks to 
ensure that this flows through all that the Group does. The Directors consider that at present the Group has an open culture 
facilitating comprehensive dialogue and feedback and enabling positive and constructive challenge. The Group has adopted, 
with effect from the date on which its shares were admitted to AIM, a code for Directors’ dealings in securities which is 
appropriate for a company whose securities are traded on AIM and is in accordance with the requirements of the Market 
Abuse Regulation which came into effect in 2016. 

Issues of bribery and corruption are taken seriously, The Group has a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and corruption and 
has an anti-bribery and corruption policy in place to protect the Group, its employees and those third parties to which the 
business engages with. The policy is provided to staff upon joining the business and training is provided to ensure that all 
employees within the business are aware of the importance of preventing bribery and corruption. Each employment 
contract specifies that the employee will comply with the policies. There are strong financial controls across the business to 
ensure on going monitoring and early detection. 
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Principle Nine 

Maintenance of Governance Structures and Processes 

The Audit Committee is chaired by John Taylor with Azriel Moscovici and Harel Kodesh being the other members. The Board 
has adopted appropriate delegations of authority which set out matters which are reserved for the Board. The Chairman is 
responsible for the effectiveness of the Board as well as primary contact with shareholders, while, as an operating company, 
execution of the Group’s strategy is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer. 

Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee has primary responsibility for monitoring the quality of internal controls and ensuring that the financial 
performance of the Group is properly measured and reported. It receives reports from Company advisors and auditors 
relating to the interim and annual accounts and the accounting and internal control systems in use throughout the Group. 
The Audit Committee meets not less than twice in each financial year and it has unrestricted access to the Group’s auditors. 

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Board complies with: a duty to act within their powers; a duty to promote 
the success of the Group; a duty to exercise independent judgement; a duty to exercise reasonable care, skill and diligence; 
a duty to avoid conflicts of interest; a duty not to accept benefits from third parties and a duty to declare any interest in a 
proposed transaction or arrangement. The Board notes requirement for the Group to meet the AIM Rules for Companies 
such that the Group is suitable at all times to remain admitted to trading on AIM. This includes the requirement for a 
governance structure compatible with this requirement. 

The Board retains full and effective control over the Group and holds regular meetings at which financial, operational and 
other reports are considered and where appropriate voted upon. The Board is responsible for the Group’s strategy and key 
financial and compliance issues. 

There are certain matters that are reserved for the Board, they include: 

• approval of the Group’s strategic aims and objectives; 
• Review of Group performance and ensuring that any necessary corrective action is taken; 
• Extension of the Group’s activities into new business or geographical areas; 
• Any decision to cease to operate all or any part of the Group’s business; 
• Major changes to the Group’s corporate structure and management and control structure; 
• Any changes to the Group’s listing; 
• Changes to governance and key business policies; 
• Ensuring maintenance of a sound system of internal control and risk management; 
• Approval of half yearly and annual report and accounts and preliminary announcements of final year results; 
• Reviewing material contracts and contracts not in the ordinary course of business. 

As the Group grows, the directors will ensure that the governance framework remains in place to support the development 
of the business. 
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Principle Ten 

Shareholder Communication 

The Board is committed to maintaining good communication and having constructive dialogue with its shareholders in 
compliance with regulations applicable to companies quoted on the AIM market. All shareholders are encouraged to attend 
the Group’s Annual General Meeting where they will be given the opportunity to interact with the Directors.  

Investors also have access to current information on the Group though its website, [www.brandshiled.com], and via Yoav 
Keren, Chief Executive Officer, who is available to answer investor relations enquiries. 

The Group shall include, when relevant, in its annual report, any matters of note arising from the Audit Committee. 

Copies of all Annual Reports, Notices of Meetings, Circulars sent to shareholders and Admission Documents (in respect of 
the last 5 years) are included on the Group’s website. 

If a significant proportion of votes was ever cast against a resolution by shareholders in General Meeting, the Group would, 
on a timely basis, provide an explanation of what actions it intends to take to understand the reasons behind that vote 
result, and, where appropriate, any different action it has taken, or will take, as a result of the vote. 

Annual report disclosures: 

The table below provides details of our annual report disclosures as required under the QCA Code 

QCA 
Code 
Principle 

Disclosure  

1 Explain the Group’s business model and strategy, 
including key challenges in their execution (and how 
those will be addressed). 
 

2021 annual report: p2-6 

4 Describe how the board has embedded effective risk 
management in order to execute and deliver strategy. 
This should include a description of what the board 
does to identify, assess and manage risk and how it 
gets assurance that the risk management and related 
control systems in place are effective. 
 

2021 annual report: p9-22 
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QCA 
Code 
Principle 

Disclosure  

6 Identify each director. 
 

2021 annual report: p7-8 

 Describe the relevant experience, skills and personal 
qualities and capabilities that each director brings to 
the board (a simple list of current and past roles is 
insufficient); the statement should demonstrate how 
the board as a whole contains (or will contain) the 
necessary mix of experience, skills, personal qualities 
(including gender balance) and capabilities to deliver 
the strategy of the Group for the benefit of the 
shareholders over the medium to long-term. 
 

See website disclosure Principle Six 

 Explain how each director keeps his/her skillset up-to-
date. 

See website disclosure Principle Six 

 Where the board or any committee has sought 
external advice on a significant matter, this must be 
described and explained. 

Legal advice is routinely sought on a 
range of matters including the conduct 
of the fundraise held in January 2022.  
Regular, monthly calls are held with the 
Company’s Nominated Advisor on a 
range of subjects and to keep them 
abreast of all developments. 
 

 

 Where external advisers to the board or any of its 
committees have been engaged, explain their role. 

See website disclosure: Principle Six 
above. 

 

 Describe any internal advisory responsibilities, such as 
the roles performed by the company secretary and the 
senior independent director, in advising and 
supporting the board. 
 

The Company Secretary helps keep the 
Board up to date on areas of new 
governance and liaises with the Nomad 
on areas of AIM requirements. The 
Company Secretary has frequent 
communication with the Chairman and 
is available to other members of the 
Board if required. 
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QCA 
Code 

Principle 

Disclosure  

10 Describe the work of any board committees undertaken 
during the year. 
 

See website disclosures. 

 Include an audit committee report (or equivalent report if 
such committee is not in place). 
 

There were no matters to report in the 
2021 annual report 

 Include a remuneration committee report (or equivalent 
report if such committee is not in place). 
 

There were no matters to report in the 
2021 annual report 

 If the Group has not published one or more of the 
disclosures set out under Principles 1-9, the omitted 
disclosures must be identified and the reason for their 
omission explained. 

N/A 

 
 
 
 
OUTLOOK 
 
The future developments are discussed in the Chairman’s Statement. 
 
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
A Moscovici - Chairman  

 30 June 2022
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 
The Directors present their report and the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 
2021.  
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
BrandShield Systems plc is a public limited company incorporated in England and Wales under the 
Companies Act (registered number 02956279). The Group is domiciled in the United Kingdom and its 
registered address is 6th Floor 60 Gracechurch street, London, EC3V OHR. 
 
 
DIVIDENDS 
 
The Directors do not recommend a payment of a dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 
2021 (2020: £ Nil). 
 
DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS 
 
The Directors shown below have held office during the year to 31 December 2021 or have been 
appointed/resigned since the year end:  

 Date appointed Date resigned 

Azriel Moscovici 1 December 2020 - 
Yoav Keren 1 December 2020 - 
Yuval Zantkeren 1 December 2020 - 
Ravit Freedman 1 December 2020 - 
Zar Jal Amrolia 1 December 2020 27 July 2021 
John Taylor 1 March 2019 - 
Harel Kodesh 27 July 2021 - 
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The Directors who served during the year and their beneficial interests in the shares of the Company as 
recorded in the register of Directors' interests at 31 December 2021 are as follows: 
 
 31 December 

2021 
 

Percentage  
31 December 

2020 
 

Percentage  
 Number of Shareholding Number of Shareholding 
 shares held % shares held* % 

  
Yoav Keren  11,888,670 10.41 11,888,670 10.41 
Yuval Zantkeren  11,888,670 10.41 11,888,670 10.41 
Zar Jal Amrolia  1,348,689 1.18 1,348,689 1.18 
John Taylor  85,000 0.0 85,000 0.0 
Azriel Moscovici  - - - - 
Ravit Freedman  - - - - 
Harel Kodesh  1,381,761 1.2 1,381,761 1.2 
 
 
 
The Directors who served during the year and their beneficial interests in share options in the Group 
(figure include options in relation to BrandShield Limited which were reissued in the Company upon 
acquisition), as recorded in the register of Directors’ interests, are as follows: 
 
 
 31 December 

2021 
 31 December 

2020 
 Number held  Number held*  
 
Azriel Moscovici 240,000 240,000 
Yoav Keren 7,084,463 1,229,883 
Yuval Zantkeren 7,084,463 1,229,883 
Zar Jal Amrolia - 240,000 
Ravit Freedman 590,000 - 
John Taylor 740,000 740,000 
Harel Kodesh 240,000 - 
   

 
See note 27 for details regarding the share options. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 
 
The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for determining and reviewing 
the compensation arrangement for all key management personnel (considered to be the Directors), 
regarded as the Officers of the Company. The Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature 
and amount of emoluments of such officers on a periodic basis. Details of the nature of each element of 
the remuneration of each member of Key Management for the year ended 31 December 2021 were as 
follows: 
 
   Other   Termination Total Total 
  Fees benefits payments 2021 2020 
Director  $ $ $ $ $ 

Azriel Moscovici  41,290 - - 41,290 3,380 
Yoav Keren  313,562 88,962 17,640 420,164 174,454 
Yuval Zantkeren  313,562 88,962 17,640 420,164 174,454 
Ravit Freedman  113,988 11,501 9,128 134,617 32,421 
Zar Jal Amrolia  - - - - - 
John Taylor  51,440 - - 51,440 27,378 
Harel Kodesh  17,204 - - 17,204 - 
Sandy Barblett (2021- advisor)   8,258 - - 8,258 23,897 

  859,303 189,425 44,408 1,093,137 459,881 

 

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 
The number of Board and other Committee Meetings held during the year were as follows: 

 
 *2020-2019 relates to the subsidiary, BrandShield Limited 

   

 

 

  

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020  31 December 2019 
Board* 13 4 6 
Audit Committee* 2 - - 
Remuneration Committee* 1 - - 
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS 
 
On 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the following parties had notified the Company of a 
beneficial interest that represents 3% or more of the Company's issued share capital at those dates: 
 

 31 December            
2021           

Number of        
shares held 

Share 
holding % 

31 
December 

2020 
Number of 

shares held 

Share 
holding 

% 

Yoav Keren 11,888,670 10.08% 11,888,670 10.4% 
Yuval Zantkeren 11,888,670 10.08% 11,888,670 10.4% 
New Enterprise Ltd 11,416,392 9.68% 11,416,392 10.0% 
Afterdox Ltd 10,003,127 8.48% 10,003,127 8.8% 
Spreadex Ltd 2,338,485 1.98% 5,258,844 4.6% 
David Fridman 5,944,335 5.04% 5,944,335 5.2% 
William Curry Investments 5,430,000 4.6% - - 
Gigi Levi Weiss 3,995,187 3.39% 1,585,354 1.4% 

 
 
 

 
 

 
STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH s172(1) COMPANIES ACT 2006 
 
The Board of BrandShield consider that they have acted in a way they consider, in good faith, would be 
most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole (having 
regard to the stakeholders and matters set out in s172(1)(a-f) of the Act) in decisions taken during the 
year ended 31 December 2021. Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 22. 
 
GOING CONCERN 
 
Accounting standards require the Directors to consider the appropriateness of the going concern basis 
when preparing the Financial Statements. The Directors confirm that they consider that the going 
concern basis remains appropriate. Further detail can be found in the Strategic Report and note 1 to the 
Financial Statements.   
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

 
 

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 
 
See the Strategic Report and Chairman’s Statements for further information of future developments of 
the Company. 
 
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
See note 29 for detail on post balance sheet events. 

 
STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR 
 
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of 
the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's auditor is unaware, and each Director has taken all 
the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.  
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 
 
PKF Littlejohn LLP has signified their willingness to continue in office as auditor. 
 
The auditor, PKF Littlejohn LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting. 

 
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

 
 
 

........................................................................ 
A Moscovici - Chairman  

 30 June 2022



 

 

 

Page 28 
 

      BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

 STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES  
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

 
 STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations.  
 
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the 
Directors have elected to prepare the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with UK-
adopted international accounting standards and as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. Under company law the Directors must not approve 
the group and parent company financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of the profit or loss of the group and parent company 
for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:  
 
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
- state whether UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group 

and parent company will continue in business.  
 

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
group’s and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of 
the group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  
 
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.  
 
The Company is compliant with AIM Rule 26 regarding the Company’s website. 
 

 ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
A Moscovici - Chairman  
30 June 2022
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC  

 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of Brandshield Systems plc (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the 
year ended 31 December 2021 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and 
Company Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and 
Company Statements of Cash Flows and, Notes to the Financial Statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international accounting standards in 
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and with regards to the parent company financial statements, as 
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.  

In our opinion:  

• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 

December 2021 and of the group’s and parent company’s loss for the year then ended;  

• the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards; 

• the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting 

standards  and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and 

• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Material uncertainty related to going concern 

We draw attention to note 1 in the financial statements, which indicates that the group and parent company will require further 
funding in order to continue its operations, this is due to the subsidiary and main operating company being loss making. These events 
or conditions, along with the other matters, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the group 
and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.  
 
Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis 
of accounting included: 

• reviewing the latest management accounts and bank statements post year end.  

• reviewing cashflow forecast and budgets (including sensitised scenarios) prepared by management for a period to 

December 2023 and compared to actual trading per management accounts provided to us 

• discussed with management regarding future plans and their view on the availability of future funding 
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• challenging management’s assumptions regarding the projected growth in revenue and raising of required funds. 

 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of 
this report.  
 
Our application of materiality 

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, 
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both 
individually and on the financial statements as a whole. 
 
The materiality applied to the group financial statements was $170,000 (31 December 2020: $260,000), having taken into 
consideration the loss before tax and also the net assets of the group. We calculated our materiality having taken into account these 
two metrics since we believe that the results of the group and it’s ability to show sufficient resources to meet their future business 
plans are of principle relevance this stage of the Group’s life cycle.   Component materiality for the group’s material trading 
subsidiary was at levels lower than overall group materiality at $166,000. 
 
The parent company materiality for our audit was $90,000 (2020: $130,000) based upon an average of the loss before tax and net 
assets the parent company materiality is in line with the group rationale stated above. 
 
Performance materiality is the application of materiality at the individual account or balance level set to reduce to an appropriately 
low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole. Performance materiality was set at 70% of overall materiality, being $119,000 for the group and $116,200 
(2020: $91,000) for the parent company respectively. 
 
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all individual audit differences identified during the course of 
our audit in excess of $8,500 for the group and $4,500 (31 March 2020: $6,500) for the parent company. 
  
Our approach to the audit 

Our audit is risk based and is designed to focus our efforts on the areas at greatest risk of material misstatement, together with areas 
subject to significant management judgement as well as greatest complexity, risk and size. 

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements. 
In particular, we looked at areas involving significant accounting estimates and judgement by the directors and considered future 
events that are inherently uncertain. The carrying value of the investments at fair value through profit or loss and investments for 
the group and also in subsidiary undertakings for the company were assessed as areas which involved significant judgements by 
management. At the group level, the accounting for the share based payments and share warrants were assessed as areas of 
significant judgement.   

We also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether 
there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud. 

The audit of the principal component, the group’s subsidiary in Israel, was completed by a network firm as component auditors to 
the group. The component auditors were instructed as to the key risks, testing methodology and materiality levels of the group and 
their work was overseen by us as the group auditor. The working papers were reviewed by the group audit team in order to ensure 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence was obtained for the group audit.  

The key audit matters and how these were addressed are outlined below. 

Key audit matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to 
fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the 
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audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  In addition 
to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going concern section we have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.  

Key Audit Matter How our scope addressed this matter 

Valuation of investments (Note 15 and 20)  

The company holds non-listed equity investments at 
fair value through profit or loss of $4,112,107 at 31 
December 2021 (2020: £4,153,602), as outlined in Note 
15 of the financial statements. The investments are 
valued at each reporting date and are under level 3 of 
the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 
13 fair value hierarchy. 
 
There is a risk that these investments are not valued 
correctly in accordance with IFRS 9 ‘Financial 
Instruments’ and IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’.  
 
In addition, within the parent company balance sheet 
only there is an investment of $25,772,709 in its 
principal trading subsidiary, Brandshield Limited 
(2020: $26,032,781), as outlined in Note 20   There is 
a risk regarding the carrying value of the subsidiary at 
the reporting date that the valuation could be 
overstated and an impairment required. 
  
The valuation of investments at the reporting date is a 
key audit matter due to the material nature of the 
balances and the significant estimates and judgements 
required by management in their valuation. 
 

Our work in this area included but was not limited to: 

• We reviewed management’s valuation and 
impairment assessments for each investment 
held. 

• We confirmed ownership of each investment 
held. 

• For investments categorised within Level 3 of 
the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy, we obtained 
management’s assessment and valuation of 
the investments held at the year end, and 
challenged the key inputs and assumptions 
used.  

• We tested the disclosures made within the 
financial statements to ensure compliance with 
IFRS 13. 

• We assessed whether management’s 
assumptions were reasonable in light of the 
measurement objectives under IFRS 13. 

• We analysed subsequent events within the 
subsidiary to determine the reliability of 
management’s forecasts in relation to their 
valuation consideration of Brandshield Limited. 
 

 
The directors have disclosed in this annual report, in 
note 15 their considerations with regard to the 
valuation of WeShop Holdings Ltd “WeShop”.   In 
particular that as at the date of this Report they have 
been unable to obtain up to date financial information 
surrounding their investment in WeShop Limited, 
totalling US$4,112,107 at the year end, and as such 
have continued to base the fair value of the investment 
on historic cost as permitted by IFRS 13. They confirm 
that they have considered the current listing of WeShop 
on JP Jenkins Ltd, a platform for trading private shares, 
and the limited volume of transactions that have 
occurred and that, having taken these into account, 
they believe that there is no information to suggest an 
impairment or uplift in the investment valuation and 
that cost is considered to represent fair value at the 
year-end. They consider that the announcement of any 
significant changes in WeShop Limited’s financial 
position will be the trigger point for a formal re-
evaluation of the fair value of the investment. 
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We note that the directors’ view that the parent 
company’s investment in Brandshield Limited is 
unimpaired relies upon their assertions that the 
subsidiary’s growth plans will be met and that this could 
require further funding to be achieved. 
 
 
 

 

Other information  

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the group 
and parent company financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated 
in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial 
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact.  

We have nothing to report in this regard.  

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006  

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:  

• the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial 

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and  

• the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.  

Matters on which we are required to report by exception  

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the course 
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.  

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to 
you if, in our opinion:  

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 

received from branches not visited by us; or  

• the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or  

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or  

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.  

 

Responsibilities of directors  

As explained more fully in the Statement of Director’s Responsibilities the directors are responsible for the preparation of the group 
and parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and the parent 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
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concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our 
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which 
our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 
 

• We obtained an understanding of the group and parent company and the sector in which they operate to identify laws and 

regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a direct effect on the financial statements. We obtained our 

understanding in this regard through discussions with management, industry research and application of cumulative audit 

knowledge. 

 

• We determined the principal laws and regulations relevant to the group and parent company in this regard to be those 

arising from: 

o the Companies Act 2006 

o IFRS accounting standards 

o Local law and regulations of the subsidiary 

o AIM Rules  

o QCA Corporate Governance Code 

o Anti-bribery legislation 

 

• We designed our audit procedures to ensure the audit team considered whether there were any indications of non-

compliance by the group and parent company with those laws and regulations. These procedures included, but were not 

limited to: 

o Enquiries of management  

o Review of board minutes and other correspondence 

o Review of the group’s related party transactions and disclosures 

 

• We also identified the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements due to fraud. We considered, in addition to 

the non-rebuttable presumption of a risk of fraud arising from management override of controls, whether key management 

judgements could include management bias was identified in relation to the carrying value of the investments and we 

addressed this as outlined in the Key Audit Matters section.  

 

• As in all of our audits, we addressed the risk of fraud arising from management override of controls by performing audit 

procedures which included, but were not limited to: the testing of journals; reviewing accounting estimates for evidence of 

bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of 

business.  

 

• Compliance with laws and regulations at the subsidiary level was ensured through enquiry of management and review of 

ledgers and correspondence for any instances of non-compliance by the component auditors. The component auditor 

workpapers in relation to compliance with local laws and regulations were reviewed at the group level. 
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Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those leading to a 
material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation.  This risk increases the more that compliance 
with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to 
become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than 
error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s 
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.  

 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.  
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone, other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed. 

 

 
 
Alistair Roberts (Senior Statutory Auditor)  15 Westferry Circus 
For and on behalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP Canary Wharf 
Statutory Auditor London E14 4HD 
 

 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

 

 

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 (*)  

 Note $  $  

      

Revenue from contracts with customers 5 
 

4,127,247 
 

2,589,370 
 

      

Cost of sales  (1,864,512)  (992,083)  

      

Gross profit  2,262,735  1,597,287  

      

Research and Development expenses 7 (2,721,553)  (1,423,287)  

Sales and Marketing expenses 7 (2,950,617)  (1,260,516)  

Operating expenses 7 (2,818,102)  (1,714,074)  

  (8,490,272)  (4,397,877)  

      

Operating loss   (6,227,537)  (2,800,590)  

      

Depreciation  (42,464)  (9,454)  

Net finance (expense)/ income 11 (33,372)  126,232  

Reverse acquisition expense 4 -  (612,294)  

      

Loss before income tax  (6,303,373)  (3,296,106)  

      

Income tax expense 12 -  -  

      

Loss from continuing operations attributable 
to owners  

 
(6,303,373) 

 
(3,296,106) 

 

Other comprehensive income:      

Items that will or may be reclassified to profit 
or loss:  

  
  

Exchange differences on translation  1,023,680  451,756  

Total comprehensive loss attributable to 
owners  

(5,279,693)  (2,844,350)  

      

      

Basic and diluted earnings per share 
attributable to owners 13 

(0.05)  (0.08)  

      

(*) 2020 expenses have been reclassified to represent the different departments 
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

 Company number: 02956279     

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 

 Note $  $ 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS     

Property, plant and equipment 14 47,839  35,872 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss 15 4,112,107  4,153,602 

  4,159,946  4,189,474 

CURRENT ASSETS     
Trade and other receivables 16 825,066  465,911 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss 17 20,534  20,741 

Other financial assets  16,218  18,373 

Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,194,275  3,198,525 

Restricted cash  191,770  - 

Assets classified as held for sale 19 337,870  341,279 

  2,585,733  4,044,829 

TOTAL ASSETS  6,745,679  8,234,303 

     

CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Short term loan and bank overdraft 24 1,626,357  - 

Trade and other payables 25 2,807,924  1,557,587 

     

  4,434,281  1,557,587 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     

     

Other payables  32,230  275,756 

  32,230  275,756 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  4,466,511  1,833,343 

NET ASSETS  2,279,168  6,400,960 

     

EQUITY     

Share capital 22 9,299,228  9,246,267 

Share premium 22 27,686,289  27,353,294 

Reverse acquisition reserve 4 (20,653,597)  (20,653,597) 

Other reserves 23 4,340,773  3,101,442 

Retained earnings  (18,393,526)  (12,646,446) 

TOTAL EQUITY  2,279,168  6,400,960 

 
The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 30, 2021 and were signed on 
its behalf by:  
 
 
........................................................................ A Moscovici - Chairman   
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 

 
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

Company number: 02956279 

 

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 

 Note $  $ 

ASSETS  
   

NON-CURRENT ASSETS     

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 4,112,107  4,153,602 

Investment in subsidiary 20 25,772,709  26,032,781 

Property, plant and equipment  2,072  - 

  29,886,888  30,186,383 

CURRENT ASSETS     

Other receivables and prepayments 16 215,827  12,573 

Loans to related parties 21 216,240  208,022 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 17 20,534  20,741 

Other financial assets  16,218  18,372 

Cash and cash equivalents 18 68,721  327,034 

Assets classified as held for sale 19 337,870  341,279 

  875,410  928,021 
     

TOTAL ASSETS  30,762,298  31,114,404 

     

EQUITY     

Share capital 22 9,299,228  9,246,267 

Share premium 22 27,686,289  27,353,294 

Other reserves 23 3,863,028  3,949,949 

Retained earnings  (10,257,078)  (9,586,843) 

     

TOTAL EQUITY  30,591,467  30,962,667 

     

CURRENT LIABLILITIES     

Trade and other payables 25 170,831  151,737 

     

TOTAL LIABILITIES  170,831  151,737 

     

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  30,762,298  31,114,404 

BrandShield Systems PLC has used the exemption granted under s408 of the Companies Act 2006 that allows for the non-disclosure 
of the Income Statement of the parent company. The after-tax loss attributable to BrandShield Systems PLC for the twelve months 
31 December 2021 was $2,352,527 (nine months to 31 December 2020: loss of $1,094,573). The Financial Statements were 
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 30, 2021 and were signed on its behalf by: 

................................................... A Moscovici - Chairman  
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 

 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 
 

 Share   
capital 

Share 
premium 

Reverse 
acquisition 

reserve 
Other    

reserves 
Retained 
earnings Total equity  

  $ $ $ $ $ $ hhhhhhhhhh 

Balance at 1 January 2020     678  
       

5,859,765  
                           

-    
       

921,982  
   

(9,350,340) 
     

(2,567,915)   
Loss for the year    - -         - -                    (3,296,106) (3,296,106)  

Other comprehensive income        
Exchange differences on 
translation - - - 451,756 - 451,756  

Total comprehensive income 
for the year 

                        
-    

                           
-    

                           
-    

                           
451,756    

   
(3,296,106) 

   
(2,844,350)  

Conversion of loans 187 
 

3,054,050 - (170,724) - 2,883,513  
Transfer to reverse 
acquisition reserve (865) (8,913,815) 

                           
8,914,680    

                           
-    

                           
-    

                           
-     

Recognition of BrandShield 
Systems PLC equity at reverse 
acquisition 8,155,038 7,197,504 

                           
(29,568,277)    404,230 - (13,811,505)  

Issue of shares on acquisition 
of subsidiary 877,175 

 
 

16,666,329 
                           

-    - - 17,543,504  

Issue of share capital 214,054 
 

3,868,362 
                           

-    
                           

-    
                          

-    
     

4,082,416  

Fair value of broker warrants 
              

-    
                  

(386,388)    
                  

-    386,388 -  
                 

-     
Grant of warrants and 
options 

                        
-             - 

                           
-    

           
963,693  

                          
-    963,693  

Expiry/cancellation of 
warrants 

                        
-    

              
7,487  

                           
-    

            
(7,487) 

                          
-    

                          
-     

Exchange differences on 
translation - - - 151,604 - 151,604  
Total transactions with 
owners, recognised directly 
in equity  

    
9,245,589  

           
21,493,529  

                           
(20,653,597)    

         
1,727,704 -            

     
11,813,225   

Balance at 31 December 
2020 

    
9,246,267  

       
27,353,294  (20,653,597)    

       
3,101,442 

   
(12,646,446) 

    
6,400,960  

Loss for the year - - - - (6,303,373) (6,303,373)  
Exchange differences on 
translation - - - 1,023,680 - 1,023,680  

Total comprehensive income 
for the year - - - 1,023,680 (6,303,373) (5,279,693)  

Exercise of options    (648,132) 648,132 -  

Expiry of options    
(1,034,16

0) 1,034,160 -  

Share based payments    1,897,944  1,897,944  

        

Issue of share capital 52,961 
 

332,995 - - - 385,956  
Balance at 31 December 
2021 9,299,228 27,686,289 (20,653,597)    4,340,774 (18,393,526) 2,279,168  
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BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 
 

 Share   
capital 

Share 
premium 

Other    
reserves 

Retained 
earnings Total equity  

  $ $ $ $ $ hhhhhhhhhh 

       

Balance at 1 April 2020 8,155,038  7,197,504  1,234,088  (8,492,270) 8,094,360   

             

Loss for the period -    -    -    (1,094,573)  (1,094,573)  

Other comprehensive income       
Exchange differences on 
translation - - 1,373,267    - 1,373,267     

Total comprehensive income for 
the year 

                        
-    

                           
-    

                           
1,373,267    

   
(1,094,573)    278,694  

Issue of share capital for 
acquisition of subsidiary     877,175  

           
16,666,329  

                           
-    

                          
-    

     
17,543,504   

       

Issue of share capital 214,054 4,067,031 - - 4,281,085  

Share issue costs - (198,669) - - (198,669)  

Share based payments - - 963,693  963,693  

Grant of warrants and options -    (386,388) 386,388     -    -                
Expiry/cancellation of warrants -    7,487  (7,487) -        -     
Total transactions with owners, 
recognised directly in equity  

    
1,091,229  

           
20,155,790  

         
1,342,594 -            

     
22,589,613   

       

Balance at 31 December 2020 9,246,267  27,353,294  3,949,949  (9,586,843)  30,962,667  

Loss for the year - -  (2,352,527) (2,352,527)  
Exchange differences on 
translation - - (302,573)  (302,573)  
Total comprehensive income for 
the year - - (302,573) (2,352,527) (2,655,100)  

Exercise of options   (648,132) 648,132 -  

Expiry of options   (1,034,160) 1,034,160 -  

Issue of share capital 52,961 
 

332,995 - - 385,956 385,956 

Share based payments - - 1,897,944 - 1,897,944  

       

Balance at 31 December 2021 9,299,228 27,686,289 3,863,028 (10,257,078) 30,591,467  
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 BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

  
Year ended 31 

December 2021  
Year ended 31 

December 2020 

 Note $  $ 

Cash flows from operating activities     

Loss for the year  (6,303,373)  (3,296,106) 

Adjustments for:     

Depreciation 14 42,464  9,454 

Share based payment expense 28 1,897,944  945,421 

Reverse acquisition expense 4 -  612,294 

     

Net finance expense 11 -  (856) 

Foreign exchange on operations  (56,515)  - 

(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables  (550,924)  232,315 

Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables  1,006,810  (672,113) 

Net cash outflow from operating activities  (3,963,594)  (2,169,591) 

     

Investing activities     

Cash acquired on acquisition 4 -  254,673 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (52,970)  (16,201) 

Net cash (outflow) / inflow/ from investing activities  (52,970)  238,472 

     

Financing activities     

Proceeds from issue of exercising warrants and options 26 385,957  - 

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 22 -  4,120,545 

Share issue costs  -  (198,669) 

Proceeds from loans and borrowings  1,626,357  893,267 

Interest paid  -  - 

Net cash inflow from financing activities  2,012,314  4,815,143 

     

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents  (2,004,250)  2,884,024 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  3,198,525  360,641 

Foreign exchange differences on cash  -  (46,140) 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 1,194,275  3,198,525 
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 BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Period ended 31 
December 2021 

 Period ended 31 
December 2020 

 Note $  $ 

Cash flows from operating activities     

Loss before income tax  (2,352,527)   (1,094,573)  

Adjustment for:     

Finance income  -  (33,514)  
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss  15 -  (37,197) 

Fair value adjustment of financial assets  -   100,814  

Share based payments 28 1,897,944  64,192  

Foreign exchange on operations  4,768  - 

(Increase) / Decrease  in trade and other receivables  (203,256)  16,157  

Increase  in trade and other payables  10,873  71,676  

Net cash outflow from operating activities  (642,198)  (912,445)  

     

Cash flows from investing activities     

     

Proceeds from the sale of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss  -  80,091 

Proceeds from the sale of other financial assets  -  336,047 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (2,072)  - 

Loans to related parties  -  (3,733,860) 

Net cash outflow from investing activities  (2,072)  (3,317,722)  

     

Cash flows from financing activities     

Proceeds from issue of exercising warrants and options 22 385,957     4,281,085  

Share issue expenses paid 22 -  (198,669)  

Proceeds from exercise of warrants 22 -  -  

Interest received  -  8  

Net cash inflow from financing activities  385,957    4,082,424  

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (258,313)   (147,743)  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  327,034  359,034  
Foreign exchange differences on cash  -  115,743 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  18 68,721  327,034  

  

    There were no significant non-cash transactions in the year.  
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 General information 
 

The principal activity of BrandShield Systems plc (the ‘Company’) is the development of a brand protection 
and online threat hunting solution to prevent, detect and remove online threats, through its research and 
development centre in Israel. 
 
Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
 The principal Accounting Policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.  

 
 Basis of preparation 
 

The consolidated financial statements of BrandShield Systems Plc have been prepared in accordance with 
UK-adopted international accounting standards and the Companies Act 2006.  
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the 
Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas 
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3. 
 
The financial statements present the results for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. The 
comparative period is for the year to 31 December 2020 and are the numbers for the BrandShield Limited, 
being the trading Company. The Parent Company financial statements comprise the twelve months ended 
31 December 2021. The comparative period for the Parent Company is the year nine months ended 31 
December 2020.  
 
The principal accounting policies are set out below and have, unless otherwise stated, been applied 
consistently in the financial statements. Following completion of the reverse takeover, the Group’s 
presentation currency has been changed from Pounds Sterling to US Dollars and the consolidated financial 
statements are prepared in US Dollars. The change in presentation currency is to bring the Group into line 
with the subsidiary’s presentation currency. The functional currency of the parent and the subsidiary is 
Pounds Sterling and New Israeli Shekel respectively. 
 
Basis of consolidation 
 
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group 
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to 
affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on 
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. Please 
refer to note 4 for information on the consolidation of BrandShield Limited and the application of the reverse 
acquisition accounting principles. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 

Going concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group will continue as a going 
concern. Under the going concern assumption, an entity is ordinarily viewed as continuing in business for 
the foreseeable future with neither the intention nor the necessity of liquidation, ceasing trading or seeking 
protection from creditors pursuant to laws or regulations. In assessing whether the going concern 
assumption is appropriate, the Directors take into account all available information for the foreseeable 
future, in particular for the twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. 
 

Following the review of ongoing performance and cash flows, the Directors have a reasonable expectation 
that the Group has adequate resources to continue operational existence for the foreseeable future.  
In January 2022 the Company completed a £1,500,000 raise of gross investment funds to continue to execute 
the strategy of aggressively targeting client and ARR growth. This was followed by an additional £1,000,000, 
both were subscribed for by existing and new investors. 
  
Given the pace of growth within the Company and the Board’s stated strategy of continuing to aggressively 
target client conversion and ARR growth, the Company will have to engage in further fundraising activity 
within the next accounting period.  This will be tailored to opportunities to expand as they present 
themselves. The Board is confident that access to such funding will be available from recent strategic 
investors should that need arise. As such, the Directors are confident that this additional funding will 
continue and consider that the Group will have access to adequate resources to meet operational 
requirements for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. On this basis, 
the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the Financial Statements, that there is a 
reasonable expectation that the Group has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing 
the Financial Statements. 
 
 
New and amended standards adopted 
 
 (a) There are no new IFRS or IFRIC Interpretations that are effective for the first time this financial 
year which have a material impact on the Group. 
 
(b) Future accounting pronouncements 
 
There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by 
the IASB that are effective in future accounting periods and which the group and parent company have 
decided not to adopt early. None of these are expected to have a significant effect on the Group or parent 
Company. In particular these are: 
 
▪ Amendments to IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current 
▪ Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent – Deferral of Effective Date 
▪ Amendments to IFRS 3: Business Combinations – Reference to the Conceptual Framework 
▪ Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment 
▪ Amendments to IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
▪ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
 

▪ Amendments to IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of 
Accounting Policies 

▪ Amendments to IAS 8: Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors – Definition of 
Accounting Estimates  
 
There are no other standards issued by IASB, but not yet effective, that are expected to have a material 
impact of the Group or parent Company. 

 
 

 Foreign currency translation 
 

a) Functional and presentation currency 
 

Items included in the Financial Information are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency’). The functional currency of the parent 
Company is Pounds Sterling, the functional currency of the Israeli subsidiary is New Israeli Shekel and the 
functional currency of the US subsidiary is US Dollars. The Financial Information is presented in US Dollars as 
all of the revenues and significant operating costs are in US Dollars. The Financial Information is translated in 
accordance with IAS 21 – The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.  
 
b) Transactions and balances 

 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing 
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where such items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and 
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement 
in net finance income/expenses. 
 
The financial statements are presented in US Dollars ($) The functional currency of BrandShield Systems plc 
is Pounds Sterling, and the functional currency of BrandShield Limited is New Israeli Shekel. 
 
Translations differences resulting from translating the Financial Information from Pounds Sterling and New 
Israeli Shekel to US Dollar are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and the Translation Reserve. 
 
 Segmental reporting 

 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision makers. The chief operating decision makers, who are responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating segments, have been identified as the executive Board of 
Directors. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 
 
Financial assets 
 
Classification 
 
The Company’s financial assets consist of loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose 
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets 
at initial recognition. 

 

(i) Loans and receivables 
 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months 
after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s loans and receivables 
comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents at the year-end. 

 

 
Recognition and measurement 
  
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date – the date on which the 
Company commits to purchasing or selling the asset. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or 
loss is initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Income Statement.  
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have 
been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.  
 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
 
The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.  
 
The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at 
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an 
approximation of the original effective interest rate (“EIR”). 
 
The Company applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs, as permitted by IFRS 9. Therefore, the 
Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead, recognises a loss allowance based on the financial 
asset’s lifetime ECL at each reporting date. 
 
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. 
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or 
external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts 
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written 
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows and usually occurs when 
past due for more than one year and not subject to enforcement activity. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 
 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit 
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
 
Property, plant and equipment 

 

Items of fixed assets are presented at cost including the direct purchase costs, less accumulated depreciation 
and less losses from an impairment in value accrued, and do not include current maintenance expenses.  

 

The rates of depreciation used in calculating depreciation are as follows: 
          % 
   Office furniture and equipment          20 
   Computers and peripheral equipment         33 
   Leasehold improvements           10 
   Vehicles       15 
 
 

 

 Depreciation of assets is discontinued the earlier of the date on which the asset is classified as held for sale, 
or the date on which the asset is withdrawn. An asset is withdrawn from the financial statements on the date 
of its sale or when the Company no longer expects to obtain economic benefits from the use of the asset.  

  
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 
 
Assets classified as held for sale 
 
Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured 
at the lower of their carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognised for any 
subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. 
 
Trade receivables 
 
Trade receivables are amounts due from third parties in the ordinary course of business. If collection is 
expected in one year or less they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current 
assets. 
 
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
 
Share capital and share premium 
 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary 
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

  
Other reserves 
 
Other reserves consist of: 
 
The share option reserve consists of the fair value of warrants and options in issue. 

 
Foreign currency translation reserve arising on exchange differences between the presentational currency 
which is US Dollars and the functional currencies of the Companies, which are Pound Sterling for Brandshield 
Systems Plc and New Israeli Shekel for BrandShield Limited. 

 
Trade and other payables 
 
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one 
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. 

 
 Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 

 
Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings or payables. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the  
 case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s 
financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans. 

 
Subsequent measurement 
 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or 
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. 

 
Trade and other payables 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
 
After initial recognition, trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains and 
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the liabilities 
are derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process.  

 
Compound financial instruments 
 
Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible notes that can be converted 
to share capital at the option of the holder.  The loan notes are automatically converted upon public 
offering of the Company’s shares. The number of shares to be issued varies based on the share price at initial 
public offering. 

 

 
The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at the present value using 
an effective interest rate of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option.  The equity 
component is recognised initially at the difference between the book value of the compound financial 
instrument as a whole and the present value of the liability component.  Any directly attributable 
transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying 
amounts. 

 

Subsequent to their initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  The equity component of a compound 
financial instrument is not remeasured subsequent to initial recognition, except on conversion or expiry. 

 

 

Derecognition  
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the associated obligation is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires.  
 
Contingent liabilities 
 
Contingent liabilities are measured at fair value, based on an average expectation of the amount payable. 
Gains and losses on the fair value are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 

Revenue recognition 
 
The Company derives revenue from the transfer of services overtime and at a point in time. Revenues from 
external customers come from the sale of online monitoring services under fixed-price and variable-price 
subscription contracts. Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the 
services are rendered in line with the delivery of performance obligations. For fixed-price contracts, revenue 
is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the 
total services to be provided, because the customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously. If the 
contract includes a variable hourly fee, revenue is recognised in the amount to which the Group has a right 
to invoice. The majority of customer contracts are subscription agreements which are recognised evenly over 
the subscription period. 

 
 Taxation 
 

Income tax is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

 
Current income tax is calculated on the results shown in the Financial Statements and according to local 
tax rules, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date. A 
weighted average tax rate is calculated by reference to the tax rates effective in each of the jurisdictions 
(United Kingdom and Israel).  
 
Tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other income tax credits due to the Company are 

assessed for recognition as deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that 
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be recognised and are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 
 
 Share based payments 

 
The Company operates an equity-settled, share-based scheme under which the Company receives services 
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options and warrants) of the Company. The fair 
value of the third party suppliers’ services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as 
an expense in the Income Statement or charged to equity depending on the nature of the service provided. 
The value of the employee services received is expensed in the Income Statement and its value is determined 
by reference to the fair value of the options granted: 
 

• including any market performance conditions; 

• excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, 
profitability or sales growth targets, or remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time 
period); and 

• including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to 
save). 

• LTIP options- The fair value at grant date is expensed over the vesting period, taking into account 
the best available estimate of the number of shares expected to vest under the performance 
conditions.  
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
The fair value of the share options and warrants are determined using the Black Scholes valuation model.  
 
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected 
to vest. The total expense or charge is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all 
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises 
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. 
It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the Income Statement or equity as 
appropriate, with a corresponding adjustment to a separate reserve in equity. 
 
When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds received, net of any directly 
attributable transaction costs, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the 
options are exercised. 
 

 Employee benefits 
 
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal 
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.  
The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Company 
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a 
restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case 
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the 
number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end 
of the reporting period are discounted to their present value. 
 
The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including a defined contribution pension plan. 
 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions where the 
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the 
current and prior periods.   

 
 
 

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

(a) Financial Risk Factors 
 
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk and credit risk. The Company’s 
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. 

 

Risk management is carried out by the management team under policies approved by the Board of Directors. 
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 

Market risk and foreign exchange risk 
 
The Company is exposed to market risk, primarily relating to interest rate and foreign exchange movements. 
The Company does not hedge against market or foreign exchange risks as the exposure is not deemed 
sufficient to enter into forwards or similar contracts.  
 
At 31 December 2021, if the New Israeli Shekel had strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar, with all other 
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year would have been $197,847 lower, mainly as a result the 
majority of operating costs being incurred in New Israeli Shekel and the majority of revenue being generated 
in US Dollar. 
 
The Directors will continue to assess the effect of movements in market risks on the Company’s financial 
operations and initiate suitable risk management measures where necessary. 

 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents as well as outstanding receivables. To manage this risk, the 
Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers and counterparties. 
 
The amount of exposure to any individual counter party is subject to a limit, which is assessed by the Board. 
 
The Company considers the credit ratings of banks in which it holds funds in order to reduce exposure to 
credit risk. Note 16 provides analysis of the performance of outstanding receivables. 
 

 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure 
to credit risk at 31 December 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 
 

 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

 $ $ 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,194,275 3,198,525 
Trade and other receivables 640,103 465,911 

Total 1,834,378 3,664,436 

 
 

Interest risk  
 
The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk on financial liabilities.  
 
Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the maturity of assets and liabilities does not match. An unmatched 
position potentially enhances profitability but can also increase the risk of losses. The Company’s continued 
future operations depend on its ability to raise sufficient working capital through the issue of share capital, 
generate a return on its investments to meet its future obligations. 
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2.   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT – continued 
 

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and by continuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The 
Company seeks to manage financial risk, to ensure sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs 
and to invest cash assets safely and profitably. 

 
31 December 
2021 

Carrying 
amounts 

Contractual 
cash flows 

3 months or 
less 

3-12 
months 

1-2 years 2-5 years 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Trade and other 
payables 

 
1,420,261 

 
1,420,261 

 
1,420,261 

- - - 

Total 1,420,261 1,420,261 1,420,261 - - - 

 
31 December 
2020 

Carrying 
amounts 

Contractual 
cash flows 

3 months or 
less 

3-12 
months 

1-2 years 2-5 years 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Trade and other 
payables 

1,141,411 1,141,411 1,141,411 - - - 

Total 1,141,411 1,141,411 1,141,411 - - - 

 
An amount of $346,306 (2020: $277,076) of trade and other payables has been excluded from the tables 
above. These amounts are royalty payments based on the timing of future revenues, the timing of which 
cannot be ascertained to a high degree of certainty. Refer to Note 24 for further details. 

 
 

(b) Capital Risk Management 
 
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, in order to enable the Company to continue its construction material activities, and to 
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
 
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the issue of shares or sell assets 
to reduce debts. 
 
The Company defines capital based on the total equity of the Company. The Company monitors its level of 
cash resources available against future planned operational activities and may issue new shares in order to 
raise further funds from time to time. 

 
(c) Fair Value Estimation 
 
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels 
have been defined as follows: 
 

• Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). 

• Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). 
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT – continued 
 

• Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, 
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). 

 
The fair values for the Company's assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values 
in the financial statements. 
 
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value: 
 

31 December 2021: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
 $ $ $ $ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    

Trading securities 20,534 - - 20,534 
     
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    

Equity securities   4,112,107 4,112,107 
 

31 December 2020: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
 $ $ $ $ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    

Trading securities 20,741 - - 20,741 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss     

Equity securities - - 4,153,602 4,153,602 
 
 
 
The Company does not have any liabilities measured at fair value. There have been no transfers in to or 
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels in the period. 

 
(i) Financial instruments in level 1 

 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the 
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an 
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent 
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used 
for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1. 
Instruments included in Level 1 comprise primarily LSE investments classified as trading securities. 

 
A reconciliation of the Level 1 investments is included in note 17. 

  
(ii) Financial instruments in level 2 

 
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using 
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is 
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value 
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. No investments are valued using level 2 
inputs in the period.   
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2.   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT – continued 
 
(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3 
 
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in 
Level 3. Following the guidance of IFRS 9, these financial instruments have been assessed to determine the 
fair value of the instrument. In their assessment, the Directors have considered both external and internal 
indicators to decide whether an impairment charge must be made or whether there needs to be a fair value 
uplift on the instrument. Details of the assessments of these instruments can be found in note 15. 

 
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 
2020 of BrandShield Systems plc. The BrandShield Limited balances are $Nil and as such have not been 
disclosed.  

     
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Opening balance  4,153,602  7,396,259 
Additions into Level 3  -  - 
Disposals from Level 3 -  - 
Transfer to investment in subsidiary -  (3,489,633) 
Fair Value adjustments - impairment -  (100,814) 
Transfer to Assets classified as held for sale  -  (341,279) 

Foreign currency translation adjustment (41,495)   689,069 

    
Closing balance 4,112,107  4,153,602 

 

 

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENTS  

The preparation of the Financial Information in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Financial Information and the reported amount of expenses 
during the year. Actual results may vary from the estimates used to produce these financial statements.  
 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  
 
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include, but are not limited to: 
 
Share based payment transactions 
 
The Company has made awards of options and warrants over its unissued share capital to certain Directors 
 and employees as part of their remuneration package. Certain warrants have also been issued to 
shareholders as part of their subscription for shares and to suppliers for various services received. 
LTIP options were granted to three managers in the company and are subject to ARR achievements. 
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENTS - continued 

The valuation of these options and warrants involves making a number of critical estimates relating to price 
volatility, future dividend yields, expected life of the options and forfeiture rates.  These assumptions have 
been described in more detail in Note 27. 

 

Fair value of government grant liability 
 

Included within liabilities is an amount repayable to the Israeli government. This amount is repayable at 3% 
of revenues generated from the relevant revenue stream. The fair valuation of the liability involves making 
critical estimates relating to the timing of the future relevant revenues and the rate used to discount these 
to present value. The key assumptions are that the royalty rate of 3% is calculated on the current year 
revenue from the website module continuing in perpetuity and discounted at 9%. 

 

Capitalisation of development assets 
The Company incurs expenditure in relation to development of the online monitoring services model, from 
which revenues are generated from. To date, the Company has not been able to reliably estimate the amount  
 
of expenditure relating to the development asset. In line with IAS 38, all costs have therefore been expensed 
in the income statement, rather than capitalised and amortised. 
 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 

  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
 
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting estimates will by 
definition, seldom equal the actual results.  
 
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below. 
 
Fair value of financial assets – level 3 
 
The Company reviews the fair value of its unquoted equity instruments at each Statement of Financial 
Position date. This requires management to make an estimate of the value of the unquoted securities in 
the absence of an active market. See note 3a and note 15 for detail on the Level 3 valuation process.  

 
Level 3 financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss have a carrying value of $4,112,107 at 31 
December 2021. The Company did not record a fair value adjustment in the year.  
 
The Company follows the guidance of IFRS 9 to determine when an investment at fair value through profit 
or loss is impaired. This determination requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the 
Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment 
is less than its cost; and the financial health of the short-term business outlook for the investee, including 
factors such as industry and sector performance and operational and financing cash flow. Management also 
consider external indicators such as technological advances and trends, commodity prices, investment 
performance and demand for the underlying commodity. As per note 2, financial assets held at fair value 
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through profit or loss are assessed individually. Details of the assessment of each investment is included in 
note 15.  
 
 
 

4.    REVERSE ACQUISITION 

On 1 December 2020, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital not already owned of 
BrandShield Limited, a private company incorporated in Israel, by way of a share for share exchange. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Although the transaction resulted in BrandShield Limited becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company, the transaction constitutes a reverse acquisition in as much as the shareholders of BrandShield 
Limited own a substantial majority of the outstanding ordinary shares of the Company and 5 out of 6 
members of the Board of Directors of the Company are BrandShield Limited shareholders and management. 
 
In substance, the shareholders of BrandShield Limited acquired a controlling interest in the Company and 
the transaction has therefore been accounted for as a reverse acquisition. As the Company previously 
discontinued its investment activities and was engaged in acquiring BrandShield Limited and raising equity 
financing to provide the required funding for the operations of the acquisition and re-listing on the main 
market of the LSE, it did not meet the definition of a business according to the definition in IFRS 3.  
 
Accordingly, this reverse acquisition does not constitute a business combination and was accounted for in 
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based payment and IFRIC guidance, with the difference between the equity 
value given up by the BrandShield Limited shareholders and the share of the fair value of net assets gained 
by the BrandShield Limited shareholders charged to the statement of comprehensive income as the cost of 
acquiring an AIM quoted listing. 

 

Following the completion of the transaction the Company changed its name to BrandShield Systems plc. 
 

On 1 December 2020, the Company issued 65,751,476 shares for the remaining 221,224 shares of 
BrandShield Limited not already owned. 

 

On 1 December 2020, the quoted share price of BrandShield Systems plc was £0.20 and therefore this valued 
the investment in BrandShield Limited at $17,543,504 (£13,150,295). 

 

Because the legal subsidiary, BrandShield Limited, was treated as the accounting acquirer and the legal 
Parent Company, Two Shields Investments plc, was treated as the accounting subsidiary, the fair value of the 
shares deemed to have been issued by BrandShield Limited was calculated at $8,640,831 (£6,477,011) based 
on an assessment of the purchase consideration for an 100% holding in BrandShield Systems plc. 

 

 

The fair value of net assets of BrandShield Systems Plc. (formerly Two Shields Investments plc) at the date of 
acquisition was as follows: 
 

 $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 254,673 
Other assets 8,192,953 

Liabilities (394,720) 

Net assets 8,052,906 
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4.    REVERSE ACQUISITION - continued 

The difference between the deemed cost and the fair value of the net assets acquired of $612,294 has been 
expensed in accordance with IFRS 2, Share based payments, reflecting the economic cost to the BrandShield 
Limited shareholders of acquiring a quoted entity. 

 

The reverse acquisition reserve that arose from the reverse takeover is made up as follows: 
 

 Year ended 31 
December 2020 

 $ 

As at start of 2020 - 
Pre-acquisition losses of BrandShield Systems plc (1) (9,371,053) 
BrandShield Limited issued capital at acquisition (2) 8,914,680 
Investment in BrandShield Limited (3) (21,543,250) 
Reverse acquisition expense (4) 612,294 
Merger reserve (5) 733,732 

 
As at end of year 2020 

 
20,653,597 

 

The movements on the Reverse acquisition reserve were as follows: 
1) These consolidated financial statements present the legal capital structure of the Company. However, 

under reverse acquisition accounting rules, the Company was not acquired until 1 December 2020 and 
therefore the entry above is required to eliminate the initial retained losses of the Company. 

2) BrandShield Limited had issued share capital of equivalent to $8,914,680 as at 1 December 2020. As 
these financial statements present the capital structure of the parent entity, the issue of equity by 
BrandShield Limited has been recorded in this reserve. 

3) The Company issued 65,751,476 shares at £0.20 each, totalling $17,543,504 (£13,150,295) for the entire 
issued capital of BrandShield Limited not already owned. The above entry is required to eliminate the 
balance sheet impact of this transaction. 

4) The reverse acquisition accounting is described in detail in note 4. The entry above represents the 
difference between the value of the equity issued by the Company, and the deemed consideration given 
by BrandShield Limited to acquire the Company. 

5) BrandShield Limited had a merger reserve of $733,732 as at 1 December 2020. As these financial 
statements present the capital structure of the parent entity, the merger reserve on the balance sheet 
of BrandShield Limited has been recorded in this reserve. 

 

 5. REVENUE 

 Group 
Year ended 

  Group 
Year ended 

 31 December   31 December 
 2021   2020 
 $   $ 
     
Revenue from external customers 4,127,247   2,589,370 
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 All revenue is recognised upon completion of the ongoing performance obligations over the term 
of the contracts. All revenue was generated in Israel.  
 

6. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS 
 

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is considered to be the Board of Directors. They consider that 
the Company operates in three segments based on geographic location (2020: two segments), the United 
Kingdom, Israel and USA. The segment assets, liabilities and results for the year ended 31 December 2021 
are as follows: 
 

 United Kingdom 
$ 

Israel 
$ 

USA 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Current assets 659,170 1,909,748 16,815 2,400,770 
Property, plant & equipment 2,072 45,768 - 47,839 
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 

 
4,112,107 

 
- 

 
- 

 
4,112,107 

Total assets 4,773,349 1,955,515 16,815 6,560,716 

     
Liabilities 110,282 4,356,229 - 4,466,511 
     
Revenue - 4,127,247 - 4,127,247 
     
Profit (Loss) (2,352,527) (3,968,691) 17,845 (6,303,373) 

 
 
The segment assets, liabilities and results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows: 
 
 

 United Kingdom 
$ 

Israel 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Current assets 720,000 3,324,829 4,044,829 
Property, plant & equipment - 35,872 35,872 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 

4,153,602 - 4,153,602 

Total assets 4,873,602 3,360,701 8,234,303 

    
Liabilities 151,737 1,681,606 1,833,343 
    
Revenue - 2,589,370 2,589,370 
Loss (169,025) (3,127,081) (3,296,106) 
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 
 
 Research and Development Expenses 
 

 Group 
Year ended 

  Group 
Year ended 

 31 December   31 December 
 2021   2020 (*) 
 $   $ 
     
Employee benefits excluding share-based payments 1,406,465   900,719 
Share-based payments 763,701   313,182 
Subcontractors 229,545   62,517 
Other expenses 321,842   146,869 

 2,721,553   1,423,287 

 
 Sales and Marketing Expenses 
 

 Group 
Year ended 

  Group 
Year ended 

 31 December   31 December 
 2021   2020 (*) 
 $   $ 
     
Employee benefits excluding share-based payments 963,710   450,237 
Share-based payments 298,384   279,194 
Marketing and advertising 1,688,523   531,085 

 2,950,617   1,260,516 

 
 Operating Expenses 
 

 Group 
Year ended 

  Group 
Year ended 

 31 December   31 December 
 2021   2020 (*) 
 $   $ 
     
Employee benefits excluding share-based payments 874,025   469,187 
Share-based payments 811,867   353,044 
Rent 321,164   34,423 
Professional services 269,838   371,641 
     
Other expenses 541,208   485,779 

 2,818,102   1,714,074 

 
 
 (*) 2020 expenses have been reclassified to represent the different departments, there has been no change in the disclosed 

profit and loss other than this reclassification. 
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8. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
 The average number of employees during the year was as follows:  

 Year ended   Year ended 
 31 December   31 December 
Average number of employees by function 2021   2020 

     
     
General and administrative 4   4 
Marketing and sales 11   5 
R&D 10   5 
Enforcement 19   14 

 44   28 

 
 The aggregate payroll costs of the above were: 
 

  
 Group 

Year ended 
  Group 

Year ended 
 Company 

Year ended 
 Company 
Period ended 

 31 December   31 December  31 December  31 December 
 2021   2020  2021  2020 
 $   $  $  $ 
         

Salaries and wages 4,406,590   1,840,952  101,146  78,551 
Share based payments 1,897,944   945,421  1,897,944  64,192 

 6,304,534   2,786,373  1,999,090  142,743 

 
 
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

 
 The directors’ aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was: 

 

 Group 
Year ended 

 Group 
Year ended 

 Company 
Year ended 

 Company 
Period ended 

 31 December  31 December  31 December  31 December 
 2021  2020  2021  2020 
 $  $  $  $ 
Director’s remuneration        
Fees 851,046  401,749  149,934  78,551 
Share based payments 1,443,320  -  1,443,320  - 
Other employment costs 233,830  58,132  -  - 

 2,528,196  459,881  1,593,254  78,551 
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  Remuneration of highest paid director: 
   

 Group 
Year ended 

 Group 
Year ended 

 Company 
Year ended 

 Company 
Period ended 

 31 December  31 December  31 December  31 December 
 2021  2020  2021  2020 
 $  $  $  $ 
Director’s remuneration        
Fees 313,562  148,020  20,000  78,551 
Share based payments 712,173    712,173   
Other employment costs 106,601  26,434  -  - 

 1,132,336  174,454  732,173  78,551 

 
 

10.    AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 
 

During the year the Company obtained the following services from the auditor: 
 Year ended   Year ended 
 31 December   31 December 
 2021   2020 
 $   $ 
     
Fees payable to the Company's auditor in relation to the audit of the Group 
and Company ($8,500 of which relates to fees payable to component 
auditors): 

 
73,081 

   
51,375 

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services:     
-Tax services 5,127   3,360 
- Other services 15,628   122,993 

 93,836   177,728 

 
11. NET FINANCE INCOME / (EXPENSE) 
 

      Group 
Year ended 

 Group 
Year ended 

      31 December  31 December 

      2021  2020 
      $  $ 
         
Bank deposit interest      -  856 
Interest and bank commissions      33,372  (5,106) 
Exchange rate gains/ (losses)      -  140,276 
Convertible loan interest expense      -  (9,794) 

      33,372  126,232 
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12. INCOME TAX 
 
 Tax charge/(credit) for the year 

 
No liability to UK corporation tax arose on ordinary activities for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 
December 2020.  
 

 

 2021  2020 

 $  $ 

Loss on ordinary activities before income tax 6,303,373  3,296,106 

Loss on ordinary activities before tax multiplied by the weighted 
average rate of corporation tax for the Group of 22.05% (2020: 23%) 

1,359,779  726,852 

Tax effects of:    

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised (940,523)  (393,069) 

Expenses not deductible (419,256)  (333,783) 

Tax charge/(credit) for the year -  - 

 
   

Weighted average tax rate is calculated by reference to the tax rates effective in each of the jurisdictions. 
The tax rates effective at 31 December 2021 are 19% (2020: 19%) and 23% (2020: 23%) in the UK and Israel 
respectively.  
 
 

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

 
Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares adjusted to assume 
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
 
In accordance with IAS 33 the share options and warrants in issue do not have a dilutive impact on the 
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the year ended 31 December 2020. The total 
number of potentially dilutive securities are 36,786,285 (2020*: 20,551,307).  
 
The weighted average number of shares is adjusted for the impact of the reverse acquisition as follows: 
 
- Prior to the reverse takeover, the number of shares is based on BrandShield Limited, adjusted using the 
share exchange ratio arising on the reverse takeover; and 
- From the date of the reverse takeover, the number of shares is based on the Company 
 
On January 2022, the company issued 10,714,286 ordinary shares at 1pence per share by way of placement 
raising £1.500,000. 
On May 2022, an additional 12,500,000 Ordinary Shares at 1 pence per share were issued by placement raising 
of £1,000,000.   
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE - continued 

 
 
Reconciliations are set out below: 

   31 December 
2021 

  

   Weighted   
   average  Per-share 
 Earnings  number of  amount 
 $  shares  $ 
      
Basic and Diluted EPS (6,303,373)  116,812,529  (0.05) 

      
      
   31 December 

2020 
  

   Weighted   
   average  Per-share 
 Earnings  number of  amount 
 $  shares  $ 
      
Basic and Diluted EPS (3,296,106)  41,839,773  (0.08) 

  
 

 *prior year numbers restated following share consolidation (200 existing shares consolidated to 1 new share) 
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
 

Group   

 Computers 
Furniture and 

equipment 
Leasehold 

improvements 
 

Vehicle Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ 

Cost      

As at 1 January 2020 52,682 11,471 14,663 - 78,816 

Additions 16,201 - - - 16,201 

Disposals - - - - - 

Translation differences 5,237 897 1,147 - 7,281 

As at 31 December 2020 74,120 12,368 15,810 - 102,298 

Additions 23,010 1,762 17,958 10,240 52,970 

Disposals - - - - - 

Translation differences 3,122 470 1,065 303 4,960 

As at 31 December 2021 100,252 14,600 34,833 10,543 160,228 

Depreciation      

As at 1 January 2020 45,263 2,713 4,259 - 52,235 

Charge for the year 7,222 753 1,479 - 9,454 

Disposals - - - - - 

Translation differences 4,038 263 436 - 4,737 

As at 31 December 2020 56,523 3,729 6,174 - 66,426 

Charge for the year 19,582 10,329 11,158 1,395 42,464 

Disposals - - - - - 

Translation differences 2,488 431 539 41 3,499 

As at 31 December 2021 78,593 14,489 17,871 1,436 112,389 

      

Net book value      

As at 1 January 2020 7,419 8,758 10,404 - 26,581 

As at 31 December 2020 17,597 8,639 9,636 - 35,872 

As at 31 December 2021 21,659 111 16,962 9,108 47,839 
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15.   FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS – NON- CURRENT ASSETS 
  

 Group   Group   Company  Company 
 31 December  31 December  31 December  31 December 
 2021  2020  2021  2020 
 $  $  $  $ 
Opening balance 4,153,602  4,167,977  4,153,602  7,396,259 
Additions -  -  -  - 
Disposals -  -  -  - 
Transfer to investment in subsidiary -  -  -  (3,489,633) 
Fair Value adjustments -  (100,814)  -  (100,814) 
Transfer to Assets Classified as Held for 
Sale 

-  (341,279)  -  (341,279) 

Foreign exchange (41,495)  427,718  (41,495)  689,069 

        
Closing balance 4,112,107  4,153,602  4,112,107  4,153,602 

 
Financial assets include the following: 
 
Unlisted securities 31 December   31 December 
 2021   2020 
 $   $ 
UK 4,112,107   4,153,602 
     
     

 4,112,107   4,153,602 

 
As at 31 December 2020, the impairment charge of $100,814 related to the investment in Leopard Lithium 
Pty Ltd, which was transferred to Assets Classified as Held for Sale at balance date (Refer to note 19). 

  
 As at 31 December 2020, investment in Kalahari Key Mineral Exploration Company (Pty) Ltd was classified 

as held for sale (Refer to note 19)  
 
As at 1 December 2020, the carrying value of the Company’s investment in BrandShield Limited of 
$3,489,633 was transferred to investment in subsidiary upon completion of the acquisition of the entire 
share capital of BrandShield Limited not already owned.  

 
At 31 December 2021, the Directors’ view of fair value of the Company’s investment in WeShop Ltd is 
$4,112,107. This remains in line with the aggregate cost of investment. BrandShield holds 508,508 shares in 
WeShop Limited which is now effectively a shell company holding approximately 33.3m shares in WeShop 
Holdings Ltd, those shares being locked in until May 2023. It is expected that at the maturity of the lock in 
period, those WeShop Holdings shares will be distributed in specie to WeShop Ltd shareholders.   Our 
holding in WeShop Ltd represents around 10.5% of the currently issued share capital in WeShop Limited. 
Should a £9m convertible loan note in WeShop Limited convert then BrandShields holding would reduce to 
around 5.3%. WeShop is currently trading on the JP Jenkins matched bargain trading platform with the 
most recent trades being at £3.50 per share. Taking this share price then the Net Asset Value of WeShop 
Limited would be £116m and the potential NAV per share would be £24.05 for currently issued shares or 
£12.09 for shares issued following conversion of the CLNs. The value of BrandShield’s holding could be 
derived at £12.2m or £6.2m respectively in those scenarios, however the Board does not believe that it is  
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 15.   FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS – NON- CURRENT ASSETS- continued 
 
prudent to attach such a valuation at this stage given the relatively small trading volume of WeShop on JP 
Jenkins, the fact that the WeShop full marketing effort has not been fully launched yet and the fact that 
there are likely to be some taxation liabilities and administrative costs associated with WeShop Limited 
which will be deducted from any shares issued to underlying shareholders in specie.  As such the Board 
has continued to hold the value of the investment in WeShop Limited at cost, that being $4,112,107. 
 
 

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

 
Group   Group   Company  Company 

 

31 December 
2021 

$ 

 
31 December 

2020 
$ 

 31 December 
2021 

$ 

 31 December 
2020 

$ 

Trade receivables 647,551  410,265  184,963  - 

Prepaid expenses 68,280  27,094  30,864  12,573 

Other receivables 109,235  28,552   -  - 

 825,066  465,911   215,827  12,573  

 
All trade receivables are denominated in US Dollars. 
 
At 31 December 2021, trade receivables of $nil (2020: $nil) were past due but not impaired.   
 
 

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS – CURRENT ASSETS 
 

 
Equity securities   

Group  
  

Group  
  

Company 
  

Company 

 31 December  31 December  31 December  31 December 

 2021  2020  2021  2020 
 $  $  $  $ 

Opening balance 20,741  58,298  20,741  58,298 
Additions -  -  -  - 

Disposals -  (42,894)  -  (42,894) 

Revaluation losses -  -  -  - 
Foreign exchange (207)  5,337  (207)  5,337 

Closing balance 20,534  20,741  20,534  20,741 

 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within ‘operating activities’ as part of 
changes in working capital in the Statement of Cash Flows. Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss, and gains or losses on disposal are recorded in ‘other (losses)/gains –  
Net’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fair value of all equity securities is based on their 
observable current bid prices in an active market, being a level 1 hierarchy. These markets are the LSE  

 as stated in note 2. 
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 18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
   

 
Group   Group   Company  Company 

 

31 December 
2021 

$ 

 
31 December 

2020 
$ 

 31 December 
2021 

$ 

 31 December 
2020 

$ 

Bank accounts 1,192,485  3,196,549   66,932  325,058 

Cash held in investment portfolio 1,789  1,976   1,789  1,976 

 1,194,274  3,198,525   68,721  327,034 

 
Cash at bank is held with:  
- Barclays Bank PLC which is an A2 rated institution with Moody’s. 
- Bank Hapoalim which is an A2 rated institution with Moody’s. 
- Bank Leumi Le'Israel is an A2 rated institution with Moody's. 
- Mercury- Mercury is a financial technology company. Banking services provided by Choice Financial 

Group and Evolve Bank & Trust®. 
 

In addition the company has restricted cash ($191,770), to secure the company's obligations for credit card 

payments. 

19. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE  

 Group   Group   Company  Company 
 31 December  31 December  31 December  31 December 
 2021  2020  2021  2020 
 $  $  $  $ 
        
Investments 337,870  341,279  337,870  341,279 

        
 337,870  341,279  337,870  341,279 

 

Investments classified as held for sale during the reporting period were measured at the lower of carrying 

amount and fair value less costs to sell at the time of the reclassification.  

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors continue to consider the fair value of the Company’s 14.1% 
investment in Kalahari Key Mineral Exploration Company (Pty) Ltd should remain at £175,000 ($236,509).   

 The Board is hopeful of this investment generating considerable upside in the coming months.   
 

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors consider the fair value of the Company’s 11.6% holding in Leopard 
Lithium Pty Ltd to be $102,384. The Company’s holding in Leopard Lithium now stands at 11.6%. 
 
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Directors consider the fair value of the Company’s 40% investment 
in Xantus Inc. to remain at nil. Following the sale of Mansa to Leopard Lithium, Xantus retains its Niger 
based lithium assets. Due to ongoing political instability in the region that in practical terms makes it highly 
challenging for any further meaningful advancement of exploration activity, the Directors consider the fair 
value of the asset should remain at nil. 
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19. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE - continued 

 
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Directors consider the fair value of the Company’s 2% investment 
in International Mining Company Invest Inc. (“IMC”) to remain at nil.  
 
As at 31 December 2020, the Directors consider the fair value of the Company’s 29.9% investment in 
International Geoscience Services Limited (“IGS”) to remain at nil. 
 

20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY  

 

Name Address of the 

registered office 

Nature of business Proportion of ordinary 

shares held by parent 

(%) 

BrandShield Limited 4 Shenkar st. Herzliya         

Israel  

Development of a brand 

protection and online 

threat hunting solution 

100 

BrandShield Inc. 174 W. 4th New York, 

NY 10014 

Marketing and sales 100 

   

 The cost of the Company’s investment in BrandShield Limited on the face of the company’s balance sheet 

consists of the acquisition cost of $22.3m in respect of the subsidiary’s share capital and $3.5m 

representing the discounted and undiscounted elements of an interest free loan repayable after more than 

5 years time. 

BrandShield Inc.- a fully owned subsidiary of BrandShield Ltd. The company was established during 2021, in 

order to extend the marketing operations of BrandShield Ltd. 

 

21. LOANS TO SUBSIDIARY  

 Company   Company 
 31 December   31 December 
 2021   2020 
 $   $ 
BrandShield Limited     

- Current 216,240   208,022 

 
 



BRANDSHIELD SYSTEMS PLC 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 69 

21. LOANS TO SUBSIDIARY- continued  

 
BrandShield Systems PLC provided a loan for working capital purposes and is repayable on demand and has 
an annual interest rate of 5%. This loan is recognised as a current asset. 
 
Management has undertaken an impairment assessment of the loan as at 31 December 2020 and has 
determined that that there was no impairment required. The interest rate and impairment assessment are 
reviewed on an annual basis.  

 

22. SHARE CAPITAL 

Group 

Number of 
Ordinary 

shares 

Number of 
Deferred 
shares* 

Share 
capital 

 
Share premium 

Total 

   $ $ $ 

As at 1 January 2020 234,590 - 678 5,859,765 5,860,443 

Conversion of loans 43,459 - 187 3,054,050 3,054,237 

Transfer of BrandShield 
Limited paid up capital to 
Reverse Acquisition 
Reserve 1 Dec 2020 (278,049) 

 
 
 

- (865) 

 
 
 

(8,913,815) (8,914,680) 

Issued capital of 
BrandShield Systems Plc at 
acquisition 1 Dec 2020 32,385,056 

 
 

32,385,056 8,155,038 

 
 

7,197,504 15,352,542 

Issue of shares for 
acquisition of subsidiary 1 
Dec 2020 65,751,476 

 
 

- 877,175 

 
 

16,666,329 17,543,504 

Issue of shares for cash 1 
Dec 2020 16,000,000 

 
- 214,054 

 
3,868,362 4,082,416 

Fair value of broker 
warrants 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(386,388) (386,388) 

Expiry of warrants -  - 7,487 7,487 

As at 31 December 2020 114,136,532 32,385,056 9,246,267 27,353,294 36,599,561 

Issue of Share Capital 3,814,389 - 52,961 332,995 385,956 

As at 31 December 2021 117,950,891 32,385,056 9,299,228 27,686,289 36,985,517 

      

 
During 2021, 3,594,389 shares were issued by the exercise of warrants and options.  
 
The issued capital of the Group for the period 1 January 2019 to 1 December 2020 is that of BrandShield 
Limited. Upon completion of the acquisition the share capital of BrandShield Limited was transferred to the 
Reverse acquisition reserve (see note 4) and the share capital of BrandShield Systems Plc was brought to 
account.  
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22. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 

 
*Holders of the Deferred Shares are entitled to receive an amount equal to the nominal amount paid up 
thereon, but only after the holders of the Ordinary Shares have received £100,000 per Ordinary Share. The 
holders of Deferred Shares are not entitled to any further right of participation in the assets of the Company. 
The Company shall have the right to purchase the Deferred Shares in issue at any time for no consideration. 
As such, the Deferred Shares effectively have no value. Share certificates were issued in respect of the Deferred 
Shares, and they were not admitted to trading on AIM.  
 

 
 

Company Number of 
Ordinary shares 

 Number of 
Deferred 

shares* 

  
Share 

capital 

  
Share 

premium 

  
 

Total 
     $  $  $ 
As at 1 April 2019 2,088,174,497  -  2,723,223  6,671,392  9,394,615 

Issue of shares 4,388,836,634  -  5,431,815  544,910  5,976,725 
Expiry of warrants -  -  -  38,556  38,556 
Fair value of placing 
warrants 

-   
- 

 -  (57,354)  (57,354) 

          

As at 31 March 2020 6,477,011,131  -  8,155,038  7,197,504  15,352,542 
Issue of shares for rounding 
purposes 

 
69 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

200 for 1 share consolidation  
(6,444,626,144) 

  
32,385,056 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

Issue of shares for acquisition of 
subsidiary 1 Dec 2020 

 
65,751,476 

  
- 

 
877,175 

  
16,666,329 

 
17,543,504 

 
Issue of shares for cash 1 Dec 2020 

 
16,000,000 

 -  
214,054 

  
3,868,362 

 
4,082,416 

Fair value of broker warrants -  -  -  (386,388)  (386,388) 
Expiry of warrants -  -  -  7,487  7,487 

As at 31 December 2020 114,136,532  32,385,056  9,246,267  27,353,294  36,599,561 

Issue of Share Capital 38,144  -  52,961  332,995  385,956 

As at 31 December 2021 114,174,676  32,385,056  9,299,228  27,686,289  36,985,517 

          

          

          

          

 
*Holders of the Deferred Shares are entitled to receive an amount equal to the nominal amount paid up thereon, 
but only after the holders of the Ordinary Shares have received £100,000 per Ordinary Share. The holders of 
Deferred Shares are not entitled to any further right of participation in the assets of the Company. The Company 
shall have the right to purchase the Deferred Shares in issue at any time for no consideration. As such, the 
Deferred Shares effectively have no value. Share certificates were issued in respect of the Deferred Shares, and 
they were not admitted to trading on AIM.  
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22. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 

 
On 1 December 2020, pursuant to approval at a General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company’s issued capital 
was consolidated on a 200 for 1 basis. The New Consolidated Ordinary shares were then sub-divided into one 
New Ordinary Share of 1 pence and one Deferred Share of 19 pence each.  
 
On 1 December 2020, pursuant to approval at a General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company issued 
65,751,476 Ordinary Shares at a deemed price of 20 pence per share as consideration to the purchase of the 
entire share capital of BrandShield Limited.  
 
On 1 December 2020, pursuant to approval at a General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company issued 
16,000,000 Ordinary Shares at 20 pence per share by way of a placement raising $4,120,505 (£3,200,000). Costs 
associated with the placing totalled $198,669 (£148,500). 
 
On January 2022, the company issued 10,714,286 ordinary shares at 1 pence per share by way of placement 
raising £1.500,000. 
 
On May 2022, an additional 12,500,000 Ordinary Shares at 1 pence per share were issued by placement raising 
of £1,000,000.   
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23. OTHER RESERVES 
  

Group 

Shares to be 
issued  Merger 

reserve 

Translation 
reserve 

Share 
option 

reserve Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance as at 1 January 2020 
 

170,724 680,505 
 

(205,211) 
 

275,964 921,982 

Recognition of BrandShield Systems 
PLC equity at reverse acquisition 

 
- - 

  
1,137,962 

 
1,137,962 

Transfer to reverse acquisition 
reserve at reverse acquisition 

 
- 

 
(733,732) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(733,732) 

Share based payments - - - 963,693 963,693 

Grant of warrants and options - - - 386,388 386,388 

Expiry/cancellation of warrants - - - (7,487) (7,487) 

Loan conversion (170,724) - - - (170,724) 

Exchange differences on translation - 53,227 451,756 98,377 603,360 

      

      

      

      

Balance as at 31 December 2020 - - 246,545 2,854,897  3,101,442 

      

      

      

Share based payments - - - 1,897,944 1,897,944 

Exercise of options - - - (648,132) (648,132) 

Expiry/cancellation of warrants - - - (1,034,160) (1,034,160) 

      

Exchange differences on translation -  1,023,680  1,023,680 

Balance as at 31 December 2021 - - 1,270,225 3,070,549 4,340,774 

      

 
Company  

 
  

Translation 
  

Share option 
  

   reserve  reserve  Total 
   $  $  $ 

Balance as at 31 March 2020   96,126  1,137,962  1,234,088 
Share based payments   -  963,693  963,693 
Grant of warrants and options   -  386,388  386,388 
Expiry/cancellation of warrants   -  (7,487)  (7,487) 
Exchange differences on translation   1,295,013  78,254  1,373,267 
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Balance as at 31 December 2020   1,391,139  2,558,810  3,949,949 

Share based payments 

    1,897,944 1
,
5
1
4
,
0
5
3 

1,897,944 

Exercise of options 

    (648,132) (
6
4
8
,
1
3
2
) 

(648,132) 

Expiry/cancellation of warrants 

    (1,034,160) (
3
7
,
9
1
3
) 

(1,034,160) 

Exchange differences on translation   (302,573)  -  (302,573) 

Balance as at 31 December 2020   1,088,566  2,774,462  3,863,028 

  
 

24. SHORT TERM LOAN AND BANK OVERDRAFT 
 

Brandshield Ltd has entered into an agreement with Leumi Bank to provide a revolving credit line facility of 
up to 8 million NIS for 24 months. The credit line will bear a competitive interest rate. The Facility allows 
drawdown of up to 4x Monthly Recurring Revenue (net of churn) and includes covenants of a type  typical 
of such an agreement.  
 
As at 31 December 2021 Brandshield Ltd met all conditions. 

 
 

 
Group   Group   Company  Company 

 

31 December 
2021 

$ 
 

31 December 
2020 

$ 

 31 December 
2021 

$ 

 31 
December 

2020 
$ 

Short term loan and bank 
overdraft 1,626,357  - 

  
- 

  
- 
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25.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 

 Current Liabilities 
 

 
Group   Group   Company  Company 

 

31 December 
2021 

$ 
 

31 December 
2020 

$ 

 31 December 
2021 

$ 

 31 
December 

2020 
$ 

Trade payables 513,132  410,613  63,271  90,449 

Amounts due to related 
parties 94  7,817 

  
60,584 

  
- 

Salaries and taxes 777,366  529,096  14,949  - 

Deferred revenue 1,041,357  388,457  -  - 

Accruals 129,670  193,885  32,027  61,288 

Royalties payable  346,306  27,719  -  - 

Advances from customers -  -  -  - 

 2,807,924  1,557,587  170,831  151,737 

 
At 31 December 2021, a deferred liability of $27,719 (2020: $277,076) has been recognised in relation to 
royalties payable to the Israeli government. The royalties relate to a repayment of 3 government grants 
received in 2011, 2012 and 2013, which helped fund the development of the Company’s website monitoring 
revenue stream. The Company must repay 3% of the annual relevant revenue.  
 
Deferred revenue recognised in the balance sheet at 31 December 2020 was fully recognised as income 
during the current year.  Deferred revenue as at 31 December 2021 is expected to be mostly realised as 
income during within 12 months of the balance sheet date. 

 
Non-Current Liabilities 

 

  

Group  
31 December  

2021 

 
Group  

31 December  
2020 

  $  $ 

Liability for severance pay  32,230  26,399 

Royalties- Payable    249,357 

  32,230  275,756 

 
Royalties payable relate to the present value of the future payments expected under the grant from the 
Chief Scientist of Israel.  
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26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

  
In addition to remuneration to Directors as disclosed in Note 9, the following related party transactions 
occurred during 2021: 
  
BrandShield Limited is connected to its predecessor Domain the Net Technologies Limited (the “Related 
Party”), a company registered in Israel. BrandShield Limited demerged from the Related Party in 2013 and 
has directors in common. Furthermore, the two parties share a number of operational costs, including 
sharing rental costs. The expenditures are viewed each month and each party recharge the other party for 
its' expenditures. The amounts payable to the Related Party as at the year ended 31 December 2021 and 
2020 were $1,000 and $5,673 respectively. During the year to 31 December, 2021 a total of $81,645 was 
paid to the Related Party as the reimbursement of expenses.   

 

 

 
 27.   SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 

 
The measurement requirements of IFRS 2 have been implemented in respect of share options and warrants 
granted. The amount recognised for share based payments during the year was $1,897,944 (2020: 
$1,909,114), $1,897,944 (2020: $945,421) has been charged to the profit or loss account and $0 (2020: 
$963,693) to share premium. 

 
20,611,019 options or warrants were issued during the period ended 31 December 2021 with an average 
exercise price of 8.7 pence (2019*: 8.84 pence). 

  
Movement in issued share options and warrants during the period 

 
The table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movements in, share 
options and warrants during the year as follows: 
 No of options 

and warrants 
WAEP 

 
Outstanding at the beginning of the 
period 

  20,551,307 £0.1681 

Granted during the year   20,900,148 £0.0886 
Exercised during the year   (3,594,389) £0.0655 
Expired/ forfeited in the year   (1,070,781) £0.39 

Outstanding at the end of the period   36,786,285 £0.1034 

     

     
 

The fair value of the options and warrants granted in the year and comparative year have been 
calculated using the Black Scholes model assuming the inputs shown below: 
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 27.   SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS- continued 

 
 
Grant date  15 January 

2021 
15 April 

2021 
21 June 

2021 
28 

September 
2021 

- No. of options/warrants granted 500,000 13,991,890 4,510,000 1,560,000 
- Share price at grant date £0.2813 £0.23 £0.1825 £0.175 
- Exercise price at grant date £0.25 £0.01 £0.25 £0.25 
- Risk free rate 0.68% 0.68% 0.68% 0.68% 
Time to maturity 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years 
- Expected volatility 49.0% 49.0% 49.0% 49.0% 
- Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 
- Fair value of option/ warrant £0.1185 £0.2203 £0.0527 £0.0485 

 
 

Grant date  7 April 
2021 

25 July 
2021 

  

- No. of options/warrants granted 49,129 240,000   
- Share price at grant date £0.215 £0.1675   
- Exercise price at grant date £0.20 £0.25   
- Risk free rate 0.68% 0.68%   
- lifetime to maturity 4 years 2 years   
- Expected volatility 49.0% 49.0%   
- Expected dividend yield 0% 0%   
- Fair value of option/ warrant £0.0763 £   

 
 

 
28. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 

 
In the opinion of the Directors as at the period end and the date of these financial statements there is no 
single ultimate controlling party. 

 
 
    

29. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 
In January 2022 the Company completed a £1,500,000 raise of gross investment funds to continue to 
execute the strategy of aggressively targeting client and ARR growth. This was subscribed for by existing 
and new investors. 
 
In May 2022 the company completed additional £1,000,000 raise of gross investment funds. This was 
subscribed for by existing inventors. 
(More information- note 22) 
 
On 25 May 2022, the company issued options over a total of 4,433,552 ordinary shares of 1 pence each, to 
Directors and Persons Discharging Managerial Responsibilities ("PDMRs"), all at an exercise price of £0.08.  




